
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

BUSINESS MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 2ND MAY, 2013 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF BUSINESS MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Hugh Rayner (Chairman), 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Brian Salinger (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors 
 

Maureen Braun 
Jack Cohen 
Brian Gordon 
 

Kath McGuirk 
Alison Moore 
Rowan Quigley Turner 
 

Barry Rawlings 
Andrew Strongolou 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Geoffrey Johnson 
John Marshall 
 

Susette Palmer 
Lord Palmer 
 

Alan Schneiderman 
Daniel Seal 
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Nathan – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Anita Vukomanovic  020 8359 7034  

anita.vukomanovic@barnet.gov.uk  
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Absence of Members  
 

 

2.   Declaration of Members' Interests  
 

a) Personal and Prejudicial Interests 
b) Whipping Arrangements ( in accordance with Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17) 

 

3.   Public Question Time (if any)  
 

 

4.   Members' Items  
 

(submitted in accordance with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rule 9) (if any) 

 

5.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

 

 Call-in  
 

 

 

6.   Any matters Referred by Members of the Committee relating to 
key decisions made by:  
 

Cabinet 18th April 2013; 
Cabinet Resources Committee  18 April 2013 ;or 
Any action taken by Cabinet Member(s) and /or Directors/Chief 
Officers under delegated powers (Executive Functions) 

 

 Councillor Calls for Action  
 

 

 

7.   Councillor Calls for Action  
 

(Submitted in accordance  with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure  
Rule 22) (if any) 

 

 Business of the Committee  
 

 

 

8.   Brent Cross / Cricklewood Regeneration Scheme  
 

1 - 12 

9.   Management Agreement with The Barnet Group for the 
Management of Council's Housing Stock and Provision of the 
Housing Service  
 

13 - 28 

10.   Task and Finish Group / Overview and Scrutiny Panel Updates  
 

29 - 68 



 
    

11.   Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report  
 

69 - 88 

12.   Advanced Notice of Executive Decisions  
 

89 - 102 

13.   Work Programme  
 

103 - 112 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Anita 
Vukomanovic  020 8359 7034  anita.vukomanovic@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing 
difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All 
of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 2
nd

 May 2013 

Subject Brent Cross / Cricklewood 
Regeneration Scheme 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report contains the Brent Cross / Cricklewood 
Regeneration Scheme Report that went to Cabinet 
Resources Committee on 18 April 2013. 

 

Officer Contributors Anita Vukomanovic, Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected Childs Hill, Golders Green, West Hendon 

Enclosures Appendix One –  Brent Cross Cricklewood 
Regeneration Scheme  

 

For decision by Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Contact for further information:  

Anita Vukomanovic, Overview & Scrutiny Officer, Assurance Group – 0208 359 7034 

anita.vuokomanovic@barnet.gov.uk  

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

1



  

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1   That the Committee consider the attached report to Cabinet Resources 

Committee on 18 April 2013 (Appendix 1 – Brent Cross / Cricklewood 
Regeneration Scheme) and make comments and/or recommendations to 
the appropriate Cabinet Member and officers. 

 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Relevant previous decisions which relate to the Brent Cross / Cricklewood 

Regeneration Scheme are set out in the report attached at Appendix 1. 
 
2.2 The Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee resolved at 

their meeting on 11 March 2013 to endorse the Committee’s Forward Work 
Programme, which included an agenda item allowing for pre-decision scrutiny 
of the Brent Cross / Cricklewood Regeneration Scheme.   

 
 
3.      CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Corporate priorities and policy considerations which relate to the Brent Cross / 

Cricklewood Regeneration Scheme are set out in the report attached at 
Appendix 1 
 

3.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels and Task and Finish Groups 
must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 

 
3.2   The three key priorities set out in the 2013-16 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Supporting families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, 
learning and wellbeing,  

 

• Improving the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study,  

 

• Promoting responsible growth, development and success across the borough.  
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Relevant risk management issues which relate to the Brent Cross / 

Cricklewood Regeneration Scheme are set out in the report attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Relevant equalities and diversity issues which relate to the Brent Cross / 

Cricklewood Regeneration Scheme are set out in the report attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 

2



  

5.2 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the council has a legislative duty 
to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; 
advancing equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without; and promoting good relations between those 
with protected characteristics and those without.  The ‘protected 
characteristics’ are f age, race, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy, 
and maternity, religion or belief and sexual orientation.  The ‘protected 
characteristics’ also include marriage and civil partnership, with regard to 
eliminating discrimination. 

 
5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as 

relating to matters within its remit, the responsibility of the Committee is to 
perform the Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role with respect to diversity and inclusiveness; 
and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment 
and retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff 
development, equalities and health and safety. 

 

6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 
Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
6.1 Relevant use of resources and implications (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money) which relate to the Brent Cross / 
Cricklewood Regeneration Scheme are set out in the report attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1 Relevant legal issues which relate to the Brent Cross / Cricklewood 

Regeneration Scheme are set out in the report attached at Appendix 1. 
 
 
 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1 Relevant constitutional powers which relate to the Brent Cross / Cricklewood 

Regeneration Scheme are set out in the report attached at Appendix 1. 
 
8.2 The scope of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.3 The Terms of Reference of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees are set out in 

the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution).   
 
8.4 Item 8 of Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee Terms of 

Reference states that its role is:   

3



  

 
“To have responsibility for the review of the policy framework and 
development of policy and strategy not within the remit of other overview and 
scrutiny committees” 
 
 

9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
 
9.1 The Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee were offered 

the opportunity to undertake pre-decision scrutiny of the Brent Cross / 
Cricklewood Regeneration Scheme.  Members resolved to request this report 
following the item’s inclusion in the Committee’s Forward Work Programme at 
the meeting of the Committee held on 11 March 2013.    

 

 

10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 
 

4



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Cabinet Resources Committee 

Date 18 April 2013 

Subject Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration 

Report of Leader of the Council 

Summary 
 

 

 

Officer Contributors Tony Westbrook - Head of Regeneration Service 

Karen Mercer - Regeneration Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public  

Wards affected Childs Hill, Golders Green and West Hendon 

Function of Executive 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in (if 
appropriate) 

Not applicable 

Contact for further information: Tony Westbrook, Head of Regeneration 020 8359 7381. 

 

5



 
 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Committee: 
 

1.1 Note that the Development Partners wish to apply to modify the existing planning 
consent to allow re-phasing.      

 
1.2 Agree that the Director for Place begin preparations to enable the Council to 

procure a development partner to deliver the regeneration of the southern parts of 
Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration Area. 
 

1.3 Confirm the continued appointment of the external advisors for the Brent Cross 
Cricklewood Regeneration project, and the procurement of appropriate additional 
advice, and to delegate authority to the Director for Place to deal necessary 
contractual issues or arrangements. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet, 26 April 2004 (Decision item 8) – approved the adoption of the Cricklewood, 

Brent Cross and West Hendon Development Framework as Supplementary Planning 
Guidance. 

 
2.2 Cabinet, 29 March 2005 (Decision item 6) – agreed to enter into a collaboration 

agreement with the development partnership (Cricklewood Regeneration Limited [CRL], 
Hammerson and Standard Life). 

 
2.3 Cabinet, 5 December 2005 (Decision item 7) – approved, amongst other matters, that 

(i) the Eastern Lands Addendum be adopted as Supplementary Planning Guidance; and 
(ii) the Eastern Lands Supplementary Guidance be incorporated into the Cricklewood, 

Brent Cross and West Hendon Development Framework. 
 
2.4 Cabinet Resources Committee, 25 March 2008 (Decision item 16) – approved the outline 

terms so far agreed with the Brent Cross partners and Cricklewood Redevelopment 
Limited, including the proposals for the finalisation of the financial terms, be approved in 
principle subject to the outcome of Counsel’s advice on procurement issues, and that the 
finally agreed terms for the Development Framework Agreement (DFA) and the Principal 
Development Agreements (PDAs) be reported to a future meeting of the Cabinet for 
approval. 

 
2.5 Cabinet, 21 October 2009 (Decision item 7) – approved the terms and conditions of 

entering into the Development Framework Agreement (DFA) and the Principal 
Development Agreements (PDAs), subject to approval of the Brookfield Europe and 
Hammerson Guarantor companies by the Director of Finance and the Leader of the 
Council, and the approval of the appropriate land transaction and financial arrangements 
by the Secretary of State.  The approval was also subject to agreement of the plans, the 
historic costs and the form of the legal documents. 

 
2.6 Cabinet Resources, 19 October 2010 (Decision item 5) – approved the changes to the 

terms and conditions of the Development Framework Agreement (DFA) and the two 
Principal Development Agreements (PDA) regarding Brent Cross Cricklewood (as 
considered and approved by Cabinet in October 2009) 

 

6



 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 The regeneration of Brent Cross Cricklewood contributes to all three priorities in the 
Corporate Plan 2012/13: 

• Better services with less money 

• Sharing opportunities, sharing responsibilities 

• A successful London Suburb  

3.2 The 2012 Growth Strategy for Barnet recognised that regeneration and growth are vital 
for ensuring the future prosperity of the borough and maintaining Barnet as a successful 
London Suburb.  The scheme to transform Brent Cross Cricklewood will play a major 
role in delivering this prosperity, doubling the size of the shopping centre and linking 
seamlessly to a new town centre for Barnet and North London across the North Circular 
Road.  Brent Cross Cricklewood is one of Barnet’s priority regeneration areas, and will 
provide over 7500 new homes over the next 20 years.  It is a key part of the wider 
revitalisation of the A5 corridor linking Brent Cross Cricklewood with developments at 
West Hendon, Colindale and Edgware and improvements to Cricklewood Town Centre, 
to create a series of high quality modern suburbs.    

3.3 The first phase of the project, which is proposed to be delivered over the next 5-10 years, 
includes the redevelopment of the shopping centre, creation of major new infrastructure, 
improved links to the existing tube station, and delivery of around 1,300 new homes.  
This will create an estimated 3,000 construction jobs, and 2,500-3,000 permanent jobs. 

3.4 As well as meeting the housing and employment needs of residents, growth can play a 
role in the longer term sustainability of Council services.  The first phase of development 
at Brent Cross Cricklewood is expected to generate approximately an additional 91,500 
sqm of net retail and commercial floorspace, equating to a potential business rate growth 
of up to £10m per annum.  The 1,300 new homes delivered over the same period are 
expected to generate around £10.4m in New Homes Bonus payments and around 
£10.9m in Council Tax for new homes by 2020. 

 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Risk management issues remain as noted in the previous reports in October 2009 and 

October 2010.  
 
4.2 The delivery of the Brent Cross Regeneration proposal (including the procurement of a 

development partner for the southern parts of the regeneration area) is subject to 
modification of the planning consent to allow re-phasing of the masterplan.  Council 
officers are working closely with development partners, Transport for London and the 
Greater London Authority to ensure this happens as quickly as possible. 

 
4.3 There is also the risk that the procurement of a development partner could be subject to 

challenge. To mitigate this risk, the procurement process will be subject to the relevant 
European Union procurement procedures, including if required, submitting a contract 
notice to the official Journal of the European Union (OJEU), of the procurement. The 
Council has retained specialist legal advice on the scheme as a means of ensuring that 
all actions taken by the Council accord with the provisions of relevant national and 
international laws, regulations and directives. 

 
 

7



 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Council is committed to improving the quality of life and wider participation for all the 

economic, educational, cultural, social and community life in the Borough.   
 
5.2 The development proposals for the Brent Cross scheme will make a significant 

contribution to the provision of additional, high quality affordable housing units in the 
Borough as well as providing employment through the creation of a new town centre with 
leisure, health and educational facilities.  

 
5.3 Extensive consultation has and will continue to be undertaken with the community to 

ensure that the scheme reflects local needs, as well as securing the future of North 
London’s only regional shopping centre. The approach aims to secure the delivery of a 
cohesive and successful suburban environment which will help to address the 
deprivation that is concentrated in parts of the Borough. 

 
5.4 In this regard, the Council and the Development Partners have appointed an 

Independent Residents Advisor to work with the residents on the Whitefields Estate 
within the regeneration area, and have established the Whitefields Estate Steering 
Group.   The Council meets with the Steering Group on a regular basis.  The Council and 
the Development Partners will be meeting with residents again in May to provide an 
update and discuss the re-phasing proposals.    

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 The Council has the following consultant team in place to advise the Council on the Brent 

Cross Cricklewood project.  Cabinet Resources Committee is asked to confirm the 
continued appointment of the external advisors for this project and that the Director for 
Place should deal with any necessary contractual issues or arrangements. 

 

  Date Appointed 

Eversheds  Legal – Commercial  July 2005 and Jan 2009 

Paul Winter  
& Co  

Legal – Planning  April 2011 (DPR) and 
July 2011 (Framework 
Agreement) 

CBRE Commercial  July 2007 (DPR 305) 

GVA Grimley Strategic Property Advice / Specialist Support Nov 12 (DPR 1830) 

PEP  Community Engagement May 2011 (DPR 1317) 

 
6.2 These contracts were subject to a competitive process and continue to represent the 

best available option for the Council.  Further advice may be required on design, 
planning, transport and environmental matters, and consultants will be procured through 
the Council’s procurement procedures.   

 
6.3 Eversheds were appointed as legal advisors to the project on 18 July 2005 to support the 

Council in negotiations for the Cricklewood and Brent Cross project.  This was following 
a competitive tender where Eversheds represented value for money and was the best 
available option for the Council.  Eversheds appointment was reconfirmed by the Cabinet 
Resources Committee on 19 January 2009.   

 
6.4 Paul Winter was at that time employed by Eversheds to provide legal planning advice to 

the Council’s Planning team.  He has since set up his own practice and, following a 

8



 
 

competitive process, has continued to advise the Council’s Planning and Legal Services 
on the Copthall and Brent Cross Cricklewood projects in accordance with the Framework 
Agreement dated 15 January 2011.  Cabinet Resources Approval is sought to enable the 
Director of Place to extend this contract in accordance with the provisions contained 
within the Framework Agreement. 

 
6.5 Under the terms of the Collaboration Agreement signed by the Council and the 

Development Partners, Hammerson/Cricklewood Regeneration Limited and Standard 
Life are obliged to pay the Council’s consultants costs in connection with this project.  
Spend to date is approximately £3.73m and this has been recovered from the 
Development Partners.    The costs associated with the further work required to progress 
the project in 2013/14 are estimated to be approximately £1.18m and will be recovered 
from the Development Partners.  The Development Partners have confirmed that these 
costs are included in their approved budget.  If the costs through monthly cost monitoring 
are likely to exceed this provision, then we will renegotiate additional costs with the 
Development Partners. 

 
6.6 Cabinet Resources Committee approval will be sought to commence the formal 

procurement process. 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  

 
7.1  The Council has power a general power of competence under Section 1 of Chapter 1 of 

the Localism Act 2011 and this empowers the Council to enter into a joint venture 
arrangement with a private sector partner for the development of the South side of the 
Brent Cross Cricklewood Development Scheme. Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 
provides local authorities with a broad power to do anything that individuals can do 
subject to any specific restrictions contained in legislation. 

 
7.2  The procurement of a development partner for the south side of the scheme would be 

carried out in accordance with the relevant European Union Procurement Regulations.   
 
7.3 The procurement exercise for the appointment of the Consultants mentioned at 

paragraph 6.1 of this report was  carried out in accordance with the Council’s Contract  
Procedure Rules and with due regard to the European Union  Procurement regulations. 

7.4 The Local Government (Contracts) Act 1997 provides an express general power for local 
authorities to enter into contracts with third parties. 

7.5 Section 111 of the local Government Act 1972 provides that a local authority has power 
to do anything which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or is incidental to the 
discharge of its functions. 

 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1 The Council’s Constitution in Part 3, Responsibility for Functions, states in paragraph 3.6 

the functions delegated to the Cabinet Resources Committee to agree contracts, and 
including all matters relating to land and buildings owned, rented or proposed to be 
acquired or disposed of by the Council. 

 
 
 
 

9



 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION / REPORT  
 

Background  
 

9.1 Brent Cross Cricklewood is one of London’s major regeneration schemes and among the 
most significant planned new developments in Europe.  It extends to circa 151 hectares.  
The Regeneration Scheme is being driven by a partnership comprising the Cricklewood 
Brent Cross Development Partners (Hammerson and Standard Life Investments) and the 
London Borough of Barnet. 
 

9.2 The site represents a significantly under used area of brownfield land comprising 
industrial uses, former railway land and retailing premises surrounded by large areas of 
surface level car parking.  The site is dominated and constrained by the existing road 
network and rail infrastructure.  Nevertheless, given its location at the connection 
between the M1 and the A406, Brent Cross Cricklewood represents an underused 
gateway site into London. The potential of the site is reinforced by its connection with the 
A5 and A41, and its close proximity to the Northern Line at Brent Cross station, the 
Midland mainline and Brent Cross bus station. 

 
9.3 The overall aim is to create a new town centre, uniting the areas north and south of the 

A406, and to stitch together the damaged fabric of this extensive urban area. The 
scheme will deliver a sustainable town centre comprising attractive residential 
environments, an expanded and improved shopping centre and an attractive retail 
environment along a new High Street.  Brent Cross Cricklewood represents an 
opportunity to create a high quality modern development within a mixed community 
providing local shops, restaurants, offices and schools, set around parkland and green 
space. 

9.4 As detailed in the Corporate Strategy section, the development of this strategic gateway 
site will not only provide an attractive and vibrant place to live and work but will also 
contribute to the future prosperity of the borough.   Phase 1 alone is expected to create 
an additional 3,000 construction jobs, and 2500-3000 permanent jobs over the next 5-7 
years and will generate approximately an additional 91,500 sqm of net retail and 
commercial floorspace, equating to potential business rate growth of up to £10m per 
annum.   

9.5 The report to Cabinet Resources on 19 October 2010 set out the final agreed commercial 
terms to be incorporated into the legal agreements between the Council, 
Hammerson/Standard Life and Cricklewood Regeneration Ltd in respect of the Brent 
Cross shopping centre  and the lands to the south of the A406.    

9.6 Outline planning permission for the comprehensive regeneration of the Brent Cross 
Cricklewood area was granted on 28 October 2010.   

 
Progress Update  

  
9.7 In the last two years the Development Partners have been working up a re-phasing of 

the existing outline planning consent that will provide a more viable scheme and will 
meet the planning conditions of the outline permission.  The risk of the need for re-
phasing was highlighted in the Cabinet Resources Committee Report in 2009 given the 
existing economic conditions.   
 

9.8 This re-phasing exercise has provided the Development Partners with the opportunity to 
revisit the masterplan and the introduction of improvements, for example better 

10



 
 

pedestrian links between Brent Cross Shopping Centre and the proposed new high 
street to the south of the A406.  This is subject to Planning and therefore needs to be 
considered and reviewed by the Council’s planning team as part of the application to 
modify the existing consent.  

 
9.9 This re-phasing strategy will enable a start on site by 2017 in accordance with the 

existing permission, and a potential opening date for the new shopping centre by 2020.   
 

Procurement of Development Partner to deliver the southern parts of the Brent 
Cross Regeneration. 

 

9.10 The Council and Hammerson/Cricklewood Regeneration Limited are investigating the 
best way to secure a development partner to deliver the southern parts of the Brent 
Cross Cricklewood Regeneration.  The Council will lead this process with the support of 
Hammerson / Cricklewood Regeneration Limited.  This approach will enable Hammerson 
to focus on the delivery of the shopping centre at Brent Cross and the significant 
infrastructure required to support the comprehensive regeneration proposals.   The legal 
agreements with the Development Partners will be updated to reflect this revised 
approach and will be reported to Cabinet Resources Committee for approval.. 
 

9.11 The Council has also instructed GVA Grimley to provide strategic property development 
advice and specialist support on the delivery of the southern parts of the scheme.  The 
first stage of that advice is to review the existing masterplan and consider the most 
appropriate delivery mechanism and procurement route to find a delivery partner.  This 
work, which is commercially sensitive, will be reported to Cabinet Resources Committee 
later this year.  

 
9.12 Cabinet Resources Committee approval is therefore sought to allow the Council and 

Hammerson/CRL to begin preparations for the Council to procure a partner to deliver the 
southern part of the regeneration proposals.   This work will include GVA, on the 
Council’s behalf, undertaking research to understand the market on bringing forward the 
regeneration proposals and determine the most suitable delivery mechanism and the 
appropriate procurement route.  

 

9.13 GVA are also commissioned to explore potential funding strategies to bring forward 
critical infrastructure within the Regeneration Area, including the Thameslink Station.  
This review will be complete in April 2013 and reported to Cabinet Resources later this 
year.   

 
9.14 Following this exercise and the conclusion of the GVA work, Cabinet Resources 

Committee  approval will be sought to commence the formal procurement process in 
early 2014 based on a clear procurement strategy and delivery mechanism.   

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MC/JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) JF 

 
 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 2nd May 2013 

Subject Management Agreement with The 
Barnet Group for the Management of 
Council’s Housing Stock and 
Provision of the Housing Service  

Report of Cabinet Member for Housing 

Summary This report outlines the background to the need to 
renew the current management agreement covering 
the activities of Barnet Homes. It also outlines the key 
activities, risks and timeline for the renewal of the 
management agreement. 

 

 
Officer Contributors Pam Wharfe. Director for Place 

Paul Shipway, Head of Housing Strategy and 
Performance 

Sarfraz Shafiq, Housing Strategy and Business 
Improvement Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected All 

Key Decision Yes 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Executive 

Enclosures Appendix 1: VFM Review - Executive summary 
Appendix 2: Recommendations from AUXO Report 
Appendix 3: 2013/14 Management Fee analysis 
 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Paul Shipway, Head of Strategy and Performance, 020 
8359 4924, paul.shipway@barnet.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

13



 

  

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider and make appropriate comments and 

recommendations on the renewal of the Management Agreement 
between the Council and The Barnet Group for the future management of 
the Council’s social housing stock and the provision of Housing Service. 

 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet approved the establishment of an Arms Length (housing) Management 

Organisation (ALMO), Barnet Homes, on 19 January 2004 (Decision Item 8).  
 
2.2 The Housing Strategy was agreed by Cabinet on 12 April 2010 (Decision Item 

8). This set out the Council’s strategic context for its approach towards its 
ALMO: 

 
“The Council views Barnet Homes as a potential vehicle for providing 
additional services on its’ behalf, as well as extending its role as a provider of 
housing related services, and we will explore options for progressing this 
through the Future Shape programme.” 

 
2.3 On 24 May 2011, the Cabinet Resources Committee approved the Business 

Case for the Adults in-house Service Review project, allowing the set up of a 
local authority trading company (LATC) structure, incorporating Barnet Homes 
(Decision item 12).  

 
2.4 The Cabinet Resources Committee agreed on 16 January 2012 to transfer the 

Housing Needs Service to The Barnet Group, with Barnet Homes responsible 
for delivering the service (Decision item 6).  

 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Renewal of the Management Agreement with The Barnet Group will enable 

the Council to continue to cater for the housing needs and aspirations of 
residents, in particular by effective management of the regeneration estates1 
and by building new homes, thereby supporting the key Corporate Plan (2013-
2016) priority to promote responsible growth, development and success 
across the borough. 

 
3.2 The inclusion of homelessness and housing advice services in the scope of 

services provided by Barnet Homes has enabled the provision of a more 
holistic and customer focused housing services for those who are most in 
need and support for young people and households to become more 
independent, a key element of the Corporate Plan priority support families and 
individuals that need it – promoting independence, learning and wellbeing. 

 
3.3 The Council’s Housing Strategy 2010 identified Barnet Homes as a suitable 

vehicle for providing additional services on its behalf, including an extension of 
its role as a provider of housing related services. This decision to expand the 

                                            
1
 The regeneration estates include Grahame Park, West Hendon, Stonegrove/Spur Road and Dollis 

Valley.  

14



 

  

functions of the ALMO was based on Barnet Homes’ successful completion of 
the Decent Homes programme, to deliver £189m worth of investment in 
council homes, and their track record of improving services for council tenants 
since they were set up in April 2004, as evidenced by improved levels of 
tenant satisfaction and successful outcomes to Audit Commission inspections 
in 2004 and 2008. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 There is a risk the Management Agreement will not adequately reflect new 

organisational structures and relationships. To mitigate against this risk the 
new Management Agreement will be drafted so that it is sufficiently flexible to 
accommodate evolving commissioning, governance and contract/performance 
monitoring arrangements. 

 
4.2 There is a risk Barnet Homes does not have the capacity to deliver new or 

additional outcomes and functions which it is expected to deliver. To formulate 
mitigation actions against this risk the Value for Money Review considered the 
capacity of Barnet Homes to deliver broader agendas. Setting of targets/Super 
KPIs will take into account findings from VFM report. Review of Service Level 
Agreements will reflect additional expectations. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Equality Act 2010 introduced a public sector equality duty which obliges 

the Council to have due regard to the need to: 
 

a) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation; 
b) advance equality of opportunity between those covered by the Equality 
Act and those not covered, e.g. between disabled and non-disabled people; 
and 
c) foster good relations between these groups. 

 
5.2 The Council has, in accordance with its statutory obligations, considered the 

impact on equalities arising from its proposal to renew the Management 
Agreement with The Barnet Group for a further 10 years. A high level 
equalities risk assessment was undertaken by the Management Agreement 
project group in February 2013 and concluded that there is a low risk of any 
adverse equalities impact on any protected characteristic grouping arising 
from the renewal of the Management Agreement with The Barnet Group. In 
view of this, a full equalities impact assessment will not be required. 

 
5.3 Under the Equality Act 2010, the public sector equality duty also applies to ‘a 

person, who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions and 
therefore must, in the exercise of those functions, have due regard to the 
general equality duty'. This means that The Barnet Group and Barnet Homes 
will need to have regard to their general equality duty in the performance of 
their function under this management agreement.  

 
5.4 Barnet Homes, as the operating subsidiary of The Barnet Group, are aware of 

and understand the obligations of the Act.  

15



 

  

 
 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 In April 2012 self financing was introduced for council housing nationally. This 

included a one-off debt settlement of £102.6 million which was financed by 
long term borrowing. The financial ring-fence that separates the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) from the general fund remains in place which means 
that the cost of supporting the self financing debt falls on the HRA and current 
projections indicate that this is sustainable in the short and long term. 

 
6.1 The financial arrangements between the Council, HRA and The Barnet Group 

are defined in the management agreement. As the operating subsidiary, there 
will continue to be a management fee which relates to the operational and 
management activities of Barnet Homes (Revenue expenditure) and 
investment in existing homes and new development (Capital expenditure). 
This separation will help to ensure that financial decisions relating to 
operational issues do not directly affect major works and allows the Capital 
programme to remain flexible and able to adapt to future needs. However it 
must be recognised that all expenditure be it revenue , capital or debt 
financing is ultimately funded by tenants through rent and service charges and 
the need to maximise value for money within the resources available is a key 
requirement to deliver the aspirations of all stakeholders. 

 
6.2 Barnet Homes has already delivered efficiencies. The management fee 

payment has reduced from £26.7m in 2010/11 to £25.8m in 2012/13, a 
difference of £900,000. This management fee is in relation to the HRA service 
provision excluding Housing Needs Resources HRA elements. 

 
6.3 The Council’s medium term financial strategy includes a further savings to the 

HRA of £400,000 in 2013/14, £300,000 in 2014/15 and £200,000 in 2015/16 
through reductions in the Barnet Homes management fee relating to housing 
management services.  

 
6.4 Further savings are included in the Council’s medium term financial strategy 

for the housing services transferred to Barnet Homes in April 2012 of £101,000 
(£40,000 HRA and £61,000 General Fund) in 2013/14, £95,000 (£40,000 HRA 
and £55,000 General Fund) in 2014/15 and £300,000 (General Fund) in 
2015/16. Barnet Homes has absorbed additional costs, rather than request a 
management fee variation from the Council.  

 
6.5 2011/12 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 

statistics benchmarking review indicates that Barnet Homes is below the cost 
average for outer London boroughs and London boroughs ALMOs. 

 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 Section 27 of the Housing Act 1985, provides the power to allow another 

person to exercise housing management on behalf of the local housing 

16



 

  

authority. This power enables ALMOs to be set up. The approval of the 
Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) is necessary for 
such an agreement, and the variation of a provision of a management 
agreement. 

 
7.2 Pursuant to section 105 of the Housing Act 1985, there is a duty to consult 

secure tenants who are likely to be substantially affected by a matter of 
housing management i.e. which relates to the management of dwelling houses 
let by the authority under secure tenancies. This includes a change in the 
policy of the authority which is likely substantially to affect the tenants.  
 

7.3 The duty to consult is technically one to inform, to allow them to make their 
views known and before making a decision upon the matter, to consider any 
representations made.  One might reasonably take the view that none of the 
potential changes would have the effect of requiring such consultation. 
Practically, however, it may be appropriate to at least inform the tenants of 
such proposals, technically outside of a section 105 consultation, without 
necessarily inviting a response. 

 
  
8. Constitutional powers (Relevant section from the Constitution, Key/Non-

Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The scope of Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Constitution 
 
8.2 The terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution).  The Business 
Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee has within its terms of 
reference the following responsibilities: 

• To have responsibility for the review of the policy framework and 
development of policy and strategy not within the remit of other overview 
and scrutiny committees. 

 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Barnet Homes was established as an Arms Length Management Organisation 

(ALMO) in April 2004, following a full stock options appraisal. The ALMO 
provided a delivery vehicle to improve the condition of the Council’s housing 
stock through the Decent Homes programme and improve services to tenants 
and leaseholders. 

 
9.2 As stated at paragraph 7 above, the original Management Agreement dated 

1st April 2004 with Barnet Homes required specific approval from the then 
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister under section 27 of the Housing Act 1985 
to delegate responsibility for the housing management function to a third party, 
in this case Barnet Homes. Further approval was sought and granted from the 
Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) in 2012 for the 
transfer of Housing Needs and Resources into Barnet Homes. 

 

17



 

  

9.3 Whilst these approvals still stand, there will need to be a refreshing of the 
authority by the DCLG. This is seen as a formality given that no major change 
to the original approval is being sought. It is expected that s27 consent will be 
granted shortly. 

 
9.4 Barnet Homes was successful in delivering the Decent Homes programme 

and improving tenant satisfaction, and in 2010 the Council’s Housing Strategy 
confirmed that the Council wanted to keep the ALMO and explore the potential 
for Barnet Homes to provide more services. 

 
9.5 In January 2012, Barnet Homes became part of The Barnet Group, a local 

authority trading company (LATC) wholly owned by the Council. As a 
consequence, by a Deed of Novation dated 1st February 2012, the Council 
agreed to release and discharge Barnet Homes from the original Management 
Agreement upon the terms of The Barnet Group undertaking to perform the 
Management Agreement, and be bound by the terms in the place of Barnet 
Homes.  Subsequently, by an agreement between The Barnet Group and 
Barnet Homes, Barnet Homes, agreed to carry out the services under the 
Management Agreement. In March 2012, the Management Agreement was 
expanded to include homelessness and housing advice services that had 
previously been provided by the Council.  

 
9.6 The relationship between the Council, The Barnet Group and Barnet Homes 

as  set out in the  Management Agreement  is due to expire in April 2014 and 
a programme of work has been taking place to review this agreement with a 
view to renew it for a further 10 years.  

 
9.7 This work has included an independent Value for Money (VFM) Review, and 

consultation with tenants and leaseholders through independently facilitated 
workshops and an online survey. 

 
9.8 Good progress has also been made in drafting a new management agreement 

that takes account of the council’s new structure and the outcomes of the VFM 
review and the consultation with residents.  

 
 
Value for Money Review 
 
9.9 The Housing Quality Network, a specialist housing consultancy, was 

commissioned to undertake the Value for Money (VFM) review during 
November and December 2012.  

 
9.10 The review focused on Quality and customer focus, performance, costs and 

concluded that overall Barnet Homes is currently high performing and 
providing value of money. 

 
9.11 The VFM review made five recommendations which are summarised below 

with responses formulated in conjunction with Barnet Homes: 
 

Recommendations  Response 
To adopt new key performance indicators 
under the following headings covering 
Business critical, Impact on residents and 

A set of key performance indicators 
and super KPIs are being 
developed to reflect the priorities of 

18



 

  

Service standards.  the Council and residents 
To agree future arrangements with BH for 
benchmarking service quality and costs with 
other housing providers.  

To be developed through 
commissioning group in conjunction 
with The Barnet Group 

To review with BH after one full year of 
operation the transfer of Housing Needs and 
Resources services.  

 

Barnet Homes are undertaking 
further lean systems thinking work 
to build upon the work already 
carried out when the service was 
managed by the council  

To support the service review of housing 
options to meet the challenges presented by 
the significant increase in housing demand at 
a time of greatly reduced housing supply.  

 
To agree arrangements with BH for on-going 
review of BH strategies, including its business 
strategy and the monitoring of performance on 
delivery of high risk work areas.  

 

These arrangements will be dealt 
with in the new management 
agreement. 

  
9.12 The executive summary from the VFM review is attached at Appendix 1 – the 

full report can be made available if required. 
 
9.13 The new management agreement will include provision for the council to carry 

out further value for money reviews of Barnet Homes at 3 and 7 years to 
ensure that services continue to be of a high standard at a competitive price.  

 
Consultation  
 
9.14 AUXO Limited undertook three workshops with a total of 33 Council tenants 

and leaseholders in December 2012 and January 2013 to elicit their views on 
service priorities for inclusion in the management agreement.  

 
9.15 The outcome of the focus groups was generally positive, with participants 

highlighting that they felt Barnet Homes strived hard to be a good landlord that 
listens to its tenants and leaseholders, with a good repairs service. It was also 
noted that Barnet Homes has improved its relationship with customers and 
provided opportunities for people in their employment and training initiatives. 

 
9.16 The focus groups identified a number of areas where they felt Barnet Homes 

could improve. These are set out in the table at Appendix 2 alongside 
responses formulated in conjunction with Barnet Homes. 

 
9.17 In addition to the workshops, an on line survey was conducted for Barnet 

Homes customers. 149 responses were received, and analysis of respondents 
top three priorities for both the Council and Barnet Homes is set out below: 

 
Priorities for Barnet Homes % Priorities for Barnet Council % 

Maintenance 15.8% New Homes 15.0% 

ASB 15.5% Improving estates/communities 14.5% 

Improving estates/communities 9.0% Maintenance 11.0% 

New Homes 8.7% ASB 9.4% 

Maintenance of common areas 8.3% Help to find work/training 7.8% 

19



 

  

Supporting people to stay in their 
homes 6.3% Maintenance of common areas 6.7% 

Handling complaints 5.8% supported housing  5.9% 

Help to find work/training 5.6% 
Green/promoting environmentally 
friendly services 5.6% 

Advice on moving to another 
home 5.1% Community Groups support 4.6% 

Supported housing  4.4% 
Supporting people to stay in their 
homes 4.3% 

 
9.18 The survey shows some correlation with the workshops, particularly around 

dealing with anti social behaviour and improving estates and communities, but 
also building new homes as a high priority for both Barnet Homes and the 
Council.  

 
9.19 Whilst maintenance figured more strongly in the survey, more detailed 

analysis showed that tenants were concerned about the cost of repairs and 
the value that Barnet Homes were getting from contractors.  

 
9.20 A limited number of surveys of housing needs customers were carried out by 

council staff at Barnet House. These highlighted the need to develop more 
effective mechanisms for consulting this customer group, but key issues 
emerged around the need for clear communication about decisions on housing 
applications. As highlighted in the VFM review, there is a need to review the 
operation of the Housing Needs service and Barnet Homes have been asked 
to carry out systems thinking work as part of this.  

 
9.21 Stakeholders including housing associations and voluntary organisations were 

also invited to complete an online survey. This elicited a low response rate 
with only six surveys completed. Key issues included regeneration, 
performance on nominating housing applicants to housing associations and 
building new homes.  

 
The Performance Framework 
 
9.22 A performance framework will be established to outline the key targets for 

Barnet Homes leading up to each of the review periods. Many of these targets 
will be familiar in relation to existing key performance indicators (KPI) and 
financial objectives. However, a new suite of Super KPIs will also be 
introduced in line with the other outsourcing projects of the Council. These will 
include: 

 

• Employment and training, with an emphasis on NEETs (young people not 
in education, employment or training) 

• Health and wellbeing  

• Growth and New Homes 
 
9.23 Work is underway to ensure Super KPIs that are set are clear and deliverable 

within an agreed timescale, and to develop a balanced scorecard approach to 
the collection of information to ensure that the measurement is able to capture 
efforts that are put in to meet the objectives. 

 
9.24 It is anticipated the Performance Framework will be completed by May 2013. 

20



 

  

 
Management Fee 
  
9.25 As set out at 6 above, Barnet Homes has already agreed to deliver efficiencies 

as part of the Council’s medium term financial strategy and HRA business plan 
and these will be incorporated into the new agreement.  

 
9.26 The Barnet Homes Year 2013-2014 HRA Management Fee Income Analysis 

(including Housing Options) is attached at Appendix 3. 
 

 
 
Commissioning Council  
 
9.27 Commercial services have been involved in the project team to ensure that the 

new Management Agreement reflects the Council’s new commissioning 
structure, and how Barnet Homes will work within this alongside other delivery 
units. Barnet Homes have also been asked to develop super key performance 
indicators which will help the council to deliver its wider strategic objectives, as 
referred to in 9.20 above.  

 
Draft Management agreement  
 
9.28 Work is currently underway to finalise and agree the Management Agreement 

with The Barnet Group , ensuring that it:  
 

• reflects the Council’s new organisational arrangements  

• ensures the continued effectiveness of the new services transferred to 

Barnet Homes as well as the existing landlord functions;  

• takes account of customers’ views.  

Next steps 
 
9.29 Outside of the Government approvals outlined at paragraphs 7, 9.2 and 9.3 

above, there will also be some governance issues to be dealt with by both the 
Council and The Barnet Group.  

 
9.30 For the Council the Cabinet will consider the new management agreement on 

18 June.  
 
9.31 The Barnet Group Board will consider the new management agreement on 07 

June 2013 
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) POJ 

21



 

  

Appendix 1 - Value for Money Review - Executive summary 
 

Housing Quality Network was commissioned by London Borough of Barnet (LBB) to 

undertake a value for money review with the aim of providing objective information on 

how Barnet Homes (BH) is achieving value for money in delivering its purpose and 

objectives. It was carried out during November and December 2012. The main output 

from the exercise is this report and recommendations. The review concludes that BH, 

overall, is currently high performing and providing value of money (VfM). 

Quality and customer focus 

BH has a sensible structure in place which is delivering high and increasing levels of 

customer satisfaction. Involved tenants feel that they are able to influence the 

service. We were particularly impressed with the outputs of frontline services the 

cleanliness and upkeep of estates. BH is aware of the challenges ahead and is 

reviewing and developing new approaches, for example to welfare reform, 

management of flexible tenancies. 

Performance 

There is a strong performance and management culture in place with regular 

reporting at a variety of levels. BH is performing well and performance in most areas 

compares well and indeed in most areas is better than peers. Much historical 

benchmarking via HouseMark is now out of date and BH has addressed this by 

helping form the London Directors Forum and joining the London ALMO group and is 

currently carrying out detailed housing service benchmarking reviews. Benchmarking 

of housing needs is a new area for BH. The housing needs London authorities’ 

benchmarking in 2010/11 found that LBB was mid table on homeless acceptances 

numbers and the fourth highest in the use of temporary accommodation. 

Costs 

The BH budget in 2012/13 is £48.239m of which £5.854m is for the new services 

added to BH in April 2012. The management fee payment has reduced from £26.7m 

in 2010/11 to £25.8m in 2012/13, a difference of £900,000. LBB’s medium term 

financial strategy includes a further £400,000 saving in 2013/14 and £300,000 saving 

in 2014/15 in the management fee.  

Further savings are included in the LBB’s medium term financial strategy for the new 

HNR services of £101,000 in 2013/14 and £95,000 in 2014/15. BH has absorbed 

additional costs, rather than requesting a management fee variation from LBB. 

2011/12 CIPFA statistics benchmarking review indicates that LBB is below the cost 

average for outer London boroughs and London boroughs with ALMOs. 

The Audit Commission said in 2008 that “Barnet Homes is generally delivering 
customer focused services, and is using partnership working to further improve 
services and capacity. There is a strong focus on value for money resulting in £6.7m 
savings since April 2006”. This review found that this was still the case. To date both 

22



 

  

LBB and BH have achieved significant efficiencies in the housing service and were 
able to identify future efficiencies which were planned.  
 
LBB’s new strategic priorities  
 
LBB has a clear framework, One Barnet Programme, for driving forward new 
strategic priorities. This has included the establishment of LATC which is a first of its 
kind. Clear priorities and objectives have been set and include:  
 

• BH has commenced a major upgrade over the next two years of its IT systems 
to deliver on value for money in future years  

• LBB has commenced discussions with BH on a new Council homes building 
programme  

• BH has a new business strategy in 2012 covering potential new areas for 
trading.  

 
Recommendations  
This review has identified five recommendations:  
 
1 To adopt new key performance indicators under the following headings:  

 

• Business critical  

• Impact on residents  

• Service standards.  
 
1 To agree future arrangements with BH for benchmarking service quality and 

costs with other housing providers.  
 
2 To review with BH after one full year of operation the transfer of Housing Needs 

and Resources services.  
 
3 To support the service review of housing options to meet the challenges 

presented by the significant increase in housing demand at a time of greatly 
reduced housing supply.  

 
4 To agree arrangements with BH for on-going review of BH strategies, including 

its business strategy and the monitoring of performance on delivery of high risk 
work areas.  

 

23



 

  

Appendix 2 - Recommendations from AUXO Report 
 

Priority Area / Main 
Issue 

The Barnet Group Response 

Value for money - Issues 
mainly around the 
perceived cost of repairs 
and that Barnet Homes 
are paying more than they 
need to in some 
instances. Some of the 
participants would 
welcome more information 
about budgets and how 
these are spent 

A recently completed benchmarking exercise with 
other London boroughs found BH repair costs are 
low and expected to improve further based on 
recently re-tendered contracts. 
  
BH will publish headline information on how rent 
money is spent in their athome magazine, including 
spend in relation to the capital investment 
programme. 
 

Reliability - Some 
concerns that BH don’t 
always do what they say 
and that service levels do 
not always meet 
expectations. Some 
reflection on delays with 
Regeneration schemes. 

 

BH is making a significant investment in IT 
infrastructure, including a new CRM system to 
improve customer information and communications 
[internally and externally] to focus service delivery 
on the needs of customers.  
 
Alongside the IT delivery will be a refresh and re 
launch of the customer service strategy which will 
include a review of the current processes and 
procedures to ensure that BH are working across 
the group structure to resolve customer queries at 
first point of contact 
 

Anti-social behaviour - A 
general desire for 
increased visibility from 
Barnet Homes on estates. 

BH set up a customer focus group on anti-social 
behaviour and will review their ASB policy. The 
objective is to give clearer advice to customers on 
the intervention process and provide information the 
role of other agencies including the police and 
community mediation organisations.  
 
BH will also explore practical ways of raising the 
visibility of field workers and site based workers 
such as caretakers, for example through distinctive 
clothing. The investment in new IT will also enable 
greater levels of mobile working and more ability to 
take immediate actions to resolve issues. 
 

Empty Homes - Identified 
as a priority but not 
discussed in any depth. 
Possibly issues about 
perception of how Barnet 
Homes manages 
properties that become 
empty 

 

Despite record low numbers of empty property and 
top quartile re-letting times, BH recognise that there 
are some instances when properties can be empty 
for a longer period of time, for example due to 
structural damage issues, and these can create a 
wrong impression.  BH to micromanage these to 
ensure re-letting times are minimised.  
 
BH also supports the Council’s Environmental 
Health teams to respond to empty leaseholder and 

24



 

  

private sector owned properties through the 
Let2barnet service, working together on Empty 
Dwelling Management Orders or ultimately a 
collaborative approach towards Compulsory 
Purchase Orders.     
 

Developing 
Communities - Barnet 
Homes should be active 
and involved in developing 
the communities in which 
people live.  The main 
areas under discussion in 
the groups was the need 
to build pride and respect 
for local communities and 
the need for Barnet 
Homes to support and 
recognise the volunteers 
who actually make a 
difference on the ground. 

 

Community Engagement team set up to lead on the 
strategic approach to building communities and 
working with partners. 
 
A variety of projects have already been 
implemented in this area, for examples: 
 
Love Burnt Oak brings together local partners to 
deliver a range of initiatives including work clubs 
and training to empower local people.  
 
The Love Where You Live programme, now in its 4th 
year, enables BH staff and contractors to work with 
local people on spring clean type activities to help 
build a sense of pride in their community.  
 
BH are partners in the community clean up and fun 
NOISE event held each year at North Road Estate.  
There are also annual fun days on Grahame Park, 
Stonegrove, West Hendon, Dollis Valley and The 
Grange estates 
 
BH also piloting community coaching project in 
Burnt Oak and seeking to develop this area as part 
of the early intervention and prevention work with 
the Council.   
 
Many BH staff are active community volunteers. BH 
is committed to contributing 1,000 staff days a year 
to volunteering in its Business Plan 2013-2018.   
 

Communication and 
consultation - Barnet 
Homes does not always 
communicate well 
internally and a perception 
that they do not always 
follow through on issues 
raised by residents. 

The investment in the new CRM system will support 
staff to track issues, actions and progress in 
meeting the often complex and cross-service needs 
of BH customers. The system will also enable the 
customers to track progress online themselves. 
 

Young People - A desire 
to see Barnet Homes 
involved in provision for 
young people such as 
youth clubs 

 

BH engage with young people in the community 
through a number of ways, including: 
 
Funding youth clubs in Fosters and West Hendon 
estates; developing two more at Burnt Oak and 
Chesterfield Road Barnet.  
 

25



 

  

Supporting Rainbow Centre on Dollis Valley with 
equipment to allow IT training and workclubs. 
 
Using their Voicebox brand to host events with 
partners such as Fairplay Barnet and NUTMEG 
community, designed to listen to views of young 
people and to inform them about current issues.  
 
Three BH Facebook pages designed to engage with 
young people in the community. Currently they have 
over 3,000 friends.  
 
Organising events such as Urban Gamez and Kickz 
to bring sport and young people together across the 
borough 
 
Funding  a full time Youth Coordinator in their new 
Community Engagement Team to work across the 
community; also have a member of their 
communications team dedicated to working with 
social media and developing new online interactions 
 
The Housing Options services Get Real project 
prepares vulnerable young people to live 
independently 
 
BH are looking to do more in this area and work 
with the Council and other partners to take on 
additional early intervention and prevention youth 
services around mentoring, peer to peer support 
and youth activities.   
 
BH also seeking to expand their already extensive 
apprenticeship programme and training 
opportunities to support young people gain full 
employment. 
 

The East/West question 
- A perception that the 
west of the borough 
receives less resources 
than the east associated 
partly with the location of 
council and Barnet Homes 
services in the 

BH exploring the provision of an office in the west of 
the borough although it is unlikely that this alone will 
be sufficient to shift this perception which is more 
widely related to generally better quality stock in the 
east of the borough and more regeneration 
schemes in the west.    
 
BH will publish headline information on how money 
is spent the in their athome magazine, including 
where the capital programme will be spent. 
 

Developing New Homes 
- There was support for 
Barnet Homes developing 

An interim Head of New Build has been appointed 
to review 40 potential infill sites.  It is anticipated 
that Barnet Homes’ first new builds will be delivered 
in the coming financial year and will include 

26



 

  

new homes properties to meet Adult Social Care needs. 
 

 
 In summing up the issues that came from the consultation, AUXO Ltd identified that 
these fell broadly into issues associated with Barnet Homes’ role as a Landlord, and 
themes associated with their wider community role. This is illustrated in the diagram 
below, in which the size of the circles represents the importance of the issue.  
 
 

  
 
 

27



 

  

Appendix 3 
 
Barnet Homes Year 13/14 HRA Management Fee Income Analysis (including 
Housing Options) 

Repairs & Maintenance 7,800,000   

Utilities  1,602,000 

(GP Boiler House, Estates, Supported 
Housing, Community Centres, Assist and GP 
Offices Utility costs) 

Accommodation  748,000 SLA Accommodation and Rates 

Grounds Maintenance & Tree Works 643,000   

Rent Deposits and Landlord Incentives 230,000   

Legal Costs 369,000   

Tenant Related Costs 99,000 

(Resident Participation costs, tenant removal 
costs, tenant travel and other misc. tenant 
related costs) 

Estate, Hostel & Warden Services 569,000 

(includes GP Boiler House Repairs & 
Maintenance costs, Caretaking & 
Neighbourhood overhead costs, CCTV, 
Nuisance etc) 

Redundancy & Pension Strain 125,000 
(Mainly Housing Options redundancy & 
pension strain costs) 

Information Technology 935,000 
SLA IT, IT Services, Software License & 
Support & IT Consumables 

Consultants 163,000   

Depreciation 266,000   

Transport costs 245,000 
SLA Transport, Fuel & Diesel, Vehicle Run 
costs 

Other Employee Related costs 543,000 

Mainly Caretakers Accommodation & Council 
Tax costs. Other costs include Staff Training, 
Car Mileage, Car Lump Sum 

Other Costs  2,204,000 

(Grant Payments £847,000 - mainly Housing 
Options, Insurance £362,000, Printing & 
Postage - £197,000, Other SLAs £168,300, 
Equipment & Materials £166,000 etc) 

Staff Costs 10,045,609 

Balancing figure (Salaries, Wages & Agency 
Staff) , other elements of salaries funded by 
Capital Works, Grant Income, YCB SLA 
income etc 

Total 26,586,609   

   

General Fund Housing Options Year 13/14 

Employees 1,683,640.00   

Non Pay Employees 51,190.00   

Premises 161,440.00   

Transport 26,920.00   

Supplies and Services 827,027.00   

Additional Finance and HR 19,041.00   

Other Costs  315,410 
Additional £376,000 budget for 2013/14 new 
activities less £61,000 efficiency saving 

Total 3,084,668   

 
 

28



 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 2
nd

 May 2013 

Subject Task and Finish Groups / Scrutiny 
Panels – Recommendation Tracking 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report provides the Committee with an update on 
the implementation of recommendations made by 
Overview & Scrutiny Task & Finish Group accepted by 
Cabinet. 

 

Officer Contributors Anita Vukomanovic, Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix A– Domestic Violence Task and Finish 
Group 

Appendix B – Contract Monitoring and Community 
Benefit Task and Finish Group 

Appendix C – Secondary School Places Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel  Task and Finish Group   

Appendix D – Early Intervention and Prevention 
(Children’s Services) Task and Finish Group 

For decision by Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Contact for further information:  

Anita Vukomanovic, Overview & Scrutiny Officer, Assurance Group – 0208 359 7034 

anita.vuokomanovic@barnet.gov.uk  

 

AGENDA ITEM 10

29



  

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider and comment on the progress made in   

implementing Task & Finish Group/ Scrutiny Panel recommendations 
accepted by Cabinet, as set out in the Appendices. 

 
1.2 That the Committee review the update on the Secondary School Places 

Overview and Scrutiny Panel and consider whether to reconvene the 
panel for one meeting. 

 
1.3 That the Committee note the update on the Education Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel as set out in paragraph 9.8 below and be requested to 
approve that consultation with Committee Members on the draft report 
takes place via e-mail instead of reporting to the next formal meeting on 
3 July 2013.  

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet, 20 February 2012, Secondary School Places Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel  
 
2.3 Cabinet, 4 April 2012, Early Intervention and Prevention (Children’s Services) 

Task and Finish Group 
 
2.5 Safer Communities Partnership Board, 7 March 2011, Domestic Violence 

Task and Finish Group 
 
2.6 Cabinet Resources Committee, 4 April 2012, Contract Monitoring and 

Community Benefit Task and Finish Group 
 
 
3.      CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels and Task and Finish Groups 

must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 

3.2   The three key priorities set out in the 2013-16 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Supporting families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, 
learning and wellbeing,  

 

• Improving the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study,  

 

• Promoting responsible growth, development and success across the borough.  
 

 
 
 

30



  

4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Failure to monitor the progress made in implementing recommendations 

made by Task & Finish Groups and Overview & Scrutiny Panels which have 
been accepted by Cabinet carries a reputational risk to the authority through a 
failure to demonstrate the outcomes from Overview and Scrutiny work. 

 

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the council has a legislative duty 

to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; 
advancing equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without; and promoting good relations between those 
with protected characteristics and those without.  The ‘protected 
characteristics’ are f age, race, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy, 
and maternity, religion or belief and sexual orientation.  The ‘protected 
characteristics’ also include marriage and civil partnership, with regard to 
eliminating discrimination. 

 
5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as 

relating to matters within its remit, the responsibility of the Committee is to 
perform the Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role with respect to diversity and inclusiveness; 
and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment 
and retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff 
development, equalities and health and safety. 

 

6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 
Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
6.1 Task and Finish Group reviews have the scope to consider value for money 

issues which identify how well the Council is managing and using its 
resources to deliver value for money and better and more sustainable 
outcomes for local people.   

 
6.2 Where there are financial implications linked to recommendations, these are 

worked through using Services existing budgets, as identified by the Task and 
Finish Group/Scrutiny Panel for Cabinet to consider alongside 
recommendations. 

 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1 Under Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s executive 

arrangements are required to include provision for appointment of an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with specified powers, including the power 

31



  

to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive with 
respect to the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the 
executive. 

 
 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees are set out in 

the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution).   
 
8.3 Item 8 of Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee Terms of 

Reference states that its role is:   
 

“To coordinate and monitor the work of scrutiny panels and task and finish 
groups, including considering reports and recommendations and referring to 
the relevant decision-making body.”   
 
 

9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1    As stated at paragraph 7 above, under Section 21 of the Local Government 

Act 2000, the Council’s executive arrangements are required to include 
provision for appointment of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
specified powers, including the power to make reports or recommendations to 
the authority or the executive with respect to the discharge of any functions 
which are the responsibility of the executive.  In respect of the exercise of the 
Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s powers to 
coordinate and monitor the work of overview and scrutiny task and finish 
groups / scrutiny panels, it is good practice to monitor the progress and 
impact of recommendations made. 

 
9.2  In May 2009, the council adopted a ‘Task and Finish’ group approach to some 

of their Overview and Scrutiny work.  Council agreed that Task and Finish 
groups would be time-limited to ensure that recommendations were made to 
the relevant decision-making body in a timely manner.  On the whole, task 
and finish groups have completed their work over a three-month period.  
However, this timescale is flexible where circumstances mean that a review 
should be run over a shorter or extended period. 

 
9.3 Since May 2009, a total of 18 Task and Finish groups and scrutiny panels 

have concluded their work on the following topics:- 
 

• Enterprise in the Borough (3rd February 2010) 

• School Places Planning (3rd February 2010) 

• Advice Provision in the Borough (22nd February 2010) 

• Homelessness and Young People (12th April 2010) 

• Road Resurfacing (12th April 2010)  

32



  

• Recycling and Waste Minimisation (6th September 2010)  

• Remodelling Older People’s Housing with Support (20th October 2010) 

• Council’s Response to Cold Weather (20th October 2010) 

• Housing Allocations Overview and Scrutiny Panel (10th January 2011) 

• Domestic Violence (7th March 2011) 

• Fostering Recruitment (14th September 2011) 

• Secondary School Places Overview and Scrutiny Panel (9thJanuary 
2012) 

• Health and Social Care Integration (4th April 2012) 

• Early Intervention and Prevention Services (Children’s Services) (4th April 
2012) 

• Contract Monitoring and Community Benefit (4th April 2012) 

• Carbon Footprint (4th April 2012) 

• Education Strategy Task (18th June 2013)  
 
9.4 In order for the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 

have an effective oversight of the work of Task and Finish groups, it is 
important for council services (or external bodies) to evidence the extent to 
which recommendations accepted by the Cabinet (or external agency) have 
been implemented.  To this end, the Scrutiny Office requested that services 
provide an update on the implementation of accepted recommendations at 
six-monthly intervals (from the date of reporting to Cabinet or external 
agency). 

 
9.5 Updates are now due in relation to the following task and finish groups and 

overview and scrutiny panels: 
 

• Contract Monitoring & Community Benefit TFG 

• Domestic Violence TFG 

• Early Intervention and Prevention TFG 

• Secondary School Places Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
 
9.6 An update from services in relation to the scrutiny panels/task and finish 

groups (referred to at 9.5 above) are set out in Appendices A to D. The 
Committee are requested to comment on information provided in the update 
report.  

 
9.7 Information contained within the Task and Finish Group update report will also 

be circulated to Members that served on the relevant task and finish.  Those 
Members will be requested to feed back any comments that they have on the 
updates provided by services to the Business Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Chairman and Scrutiny Office.  Any comments will be 
reported to the Committee to enable appropriate action to be taken. 

 
9.8 Members are requested to note that the final report of the Education Strategy 

Overview and Scrutiny Panel was due to be presented to the Committee at 
this meeting.  Due to timing issues, it has not been possible to finalise the 
report in time for formal consideration at this meeting.  As set out in 
recommendation 1.3, the Committee are requested to approve that 

33



  

consultation with committee members takes place via e-mail to enable the 
report of the Panel to be reported to Cabinet on 18 June 2013 alongside the 
Education Strategy for Barnet.    

 

10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance JH 

Cleared by Legal  MB 

  
. 
 

34



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

  

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 O

n
e
: 

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

p
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild

 
v
ic
ti
m
s
/w
it
n
e
s
s
e
s
 o
f 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 t
o
 

ta
c
k
le
 t
h
e
 

in
te
rg
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
y
c
le
 

o
f 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 i
n
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
” 

A
g
re
e
d
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

G
re
e
n
 

S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
ic
h
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
; 
th
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
; 
In
te
n
s
iv
e
 f
a
m
ily
 f
o
c
u
s
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 T
ro
u
b
le
d
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 U
n
it
, 
th
e
 S
a
fe
r 
F
a
m
ili
e
s
 P
ro
je
c
t 
w
o
rk
, 
a
 y
o
u
th
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 

th
ro
u
g
h
 V
ic
ti
m
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
. 
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
D
V
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
S
o
la
c
e
 W

o
m
e
n
’s
 A
id
, 
L
B
B
’s
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 D
V
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 

c
a
lle

d
 ‘
H
u
rt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
’ 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
1
 y
e
a
rs
 p
lu
s
, 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 (
th
e
ir
 m

o
th
e
rs
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
).
 

  

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

       

35



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

  

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
N
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
w
o
: 

A
m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
it
le
 o
f 

B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 M

u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 C
a
ll 

to
 E
n
d
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

W
o
m
e
n
 a
n
d
 G

ir
ls
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 

a
tt
ra
c
ti
n
g
 H
o
m
e
 O

ff
ic
e
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

  

G
re
e
n
 

 S
C
P
B
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

N
o
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 w
a
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 

ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
is
 w
id
e
r,
 a
lb
e
it
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t,
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

T
h
e
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 
V
io
le
n
c
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
e
n
d
e
d
 
in
 
M
a
rc
h
 
2
0
1
3
. 
T
h
is
 
w
a
s
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 D

V
 

F
o
ru
m
, 
th
e
 D

V
O
P
S
 a
n
d
 D

V
S
B
. 
 A

 n
e
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w

a
s
 d
ra
ft
e
d
 

w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 b
e
 r
e
n
a
m
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
, 
 

‘V
io
le
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
W
o
m
e
n
 a
n
d
 G
ir
ls
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
1
3
 -
2
0
1
6
’.
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 g
o
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

1
9
th
 A
p
ri
l 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
If
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 f
o
r 
B
a
rn
e
t.
 

A
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 M

O
P
A
C
, 
to
 h
e
lp
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 V
A
W
G
 w
o
rk
.  
 

 

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

36



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

   

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
h
re
e
: 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

to
 d
e
ta
il 
h
o
w
 B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 

M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
ill
 

b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
, 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 

s
h
a
re
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
, 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
, 
k
e
y
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 

 

G
re
e
n
 

S
C
P
B
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

A
g
re
e
d
, 
a
s
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 u
ti
lis
in
g
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

T
h
e
 2
0
1
0
/2
0
1
2
 D
V
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
V
 

C
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D
V
O
P
S
 a
n
d
 D
V
S
B
 a
re
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 f
in
a
l 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 D
V
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
s
 

it
 e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
. 
O
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 V
A
W
G
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 S
C
P
B
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
, 
th
e
n
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
s
 w
e
ll.
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
n
e
w
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le
s
 u
n
ti
l 
2
0
1
6
. 

 

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

37



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

   

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 F
o
u
r 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t/
re
fe
rr
a
l 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 f
o
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

G
re
e
n
 

S
C
P
B
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 –
 a
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

T
h
is
 p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
A
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r 
te
a
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
. 
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
n
; 

•
 

A
 f
lo
w
 c
h
a
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

A
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 

•
 

A
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
fo
rm

 
 T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 o
n
 L
B
B
’s
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 p
a
g
e
, 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 a
ll 

th
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
a
rn
e
t.
g
o
v
.u
k
/W

o
rk
in
g
W
it
h
C
h
ild

re
n
In
B
a
rn
e
t/
in
fo
/3
0
0
3
9
/d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
_

v
io
le
n
c
e
 

  T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 I
S
A
 (
A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
2
) 
fo
r 
th
e
 M

u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 R
is
k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 (
M
A
R
A
C
) 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 a
ll 
th
e
 

k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 c
a
s
e
s
. 

 

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

38



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

   

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 F
iv
e
: 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
k
e
y
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
w
it
h
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

w
e
ig
h
ti
n
g
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

G
re
e
n
 

S
C
P
B
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 

A
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

  U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

 T
h
e
 D
V
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
S
o
la
c
e
 W

o
m
e
n
’s
 A
id
 w
h
o
 a
re
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
o
f 

th
e
 t
h
re
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w
e
re
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 f
o
r 

tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 f
ro
m
 1

s
t  
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 u
n
ti
l 
3
1
s
t  
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
; 

 
1
. 
A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
C
o
lin

d
a
le
 P
o
lic
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
) 

2
. 
R
e
fu
g
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 (
2
 r
e
fu
g
e
s
, 
1
8
 b
e
d
s
) 

3
. 
P
e
rp
e
tr
a
to
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 w
it
h
 

c
lie

n
ts
. 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
o
s
t 
w
a
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 A
d
v
o
c
a
te
 (
ID
V
A
) 
ro
le
, 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
e
 S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
u
rt
 (
S
D
V
C
) 
a
t 
H
e
n
d
o
n
 M

a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
. 
T
h
is
 

is
 b
a
s
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

39



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

    

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
  
S
ix

 

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 

v
is
it
s
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 h
ig
h
lig

h
t 

th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
v
a
ila

b
le
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

G
re
e
n
 

S
C
P
B
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

 V
ic
ti
m
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 B
a
rn
e
t 
h
a
s
 a
 Y
o
u
th
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
W
o
rk
e
r 
th
a
t 
is
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 g
ra
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 L
B
B
. 
H
e
r 
ro
le
 i
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
, 
d
e
liv
e
r 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
to
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 y
o
u
th
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
o
p
le
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
U
n
it
s
. 
 

 

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

40



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

     

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
v
e
n

 

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 

S
u
rv
iv
o
r 
G
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 s
e
lf
-h
e
lp
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 f
o
r 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 f
u
tu
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

 

G
re
e
n
 

S
C
P
B
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 (
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
) 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 E
IP
s
 S
a
fe
r 
F
a
m
ili
e
s
 P
ro
je
c
t 
th
a
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
s
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 

fr
o
m
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 a
t 
3
 C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
; 
o
n
 S
ta
y
 a
n
d
 

P
la
y
, 
o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 f
o
r 
v
ic
ti
m
s
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 D
V
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
w
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
D
V
. 
O
n
e
 i
s
; 

‘P
ic
k
in
g
 u
p
 t
h
e
 P
ie
c
e
s
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
H
u
rt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
’.
 T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
ild

re
n
, 
a
ro
u
n
d
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
re
m
it
s
. 
T
h
e
 S
a
fe
r 
F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild

re
n
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
1
1
 y
e
a
rs
 o
ld
, 
w
h
ils
t 
S
o
la
c
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
1
1
 y
e
a
rs
, 
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 n
o
 c
h
ild

re
n
. 

 S
o
la
c
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 m

a
d
e
 a
 g
ra
n
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 f
u
n
d
 a
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
fo
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 p
e
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
rs
 t
o
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs

.
 
T
h
is
 g
ra
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

b
y
 L
B
B
. 
(a
w
a
it
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
) 

 S
o
la
c
e
’s
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
lie

n
ts
 a
ls
o
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 v
o
ic
e
 i
d
e
a
s
, 

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

41



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

  

g
a
p
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

                   

42



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

  

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 E
ig
h
t:
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 N
H
S
 B
a
rn
e
t 

to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
n
io
r 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 w
ill
 

re
g
u
la
rl
y
 a
tt
e
n
d
 M

u
lt
i-

A
g
e
n
c
y
 R
is
k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
, 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
o
a
rd
 

(D
V
S
B
) 
a
n
d
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 O

p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

G
ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

 

A
m
b
e
r 

S
C
P
B
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 (
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
) 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

 T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
th
e
 M

A
R
A
C
 b
y
 Y
o
la
n
d
e
r 
D
a
v
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

M
a
ry
 S
m
it
h
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 C
h
ild

 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
; 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 G

ill
 

R
o
b
in
s
o
n
 f
ro
m
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T
h
e
 D
V
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 h
e
a
lt
h
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
t 
th
e
 D
V
O
P
S
 

G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D
V
S
B
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t.
 T
h
is
 m

a
tt
e
r 
is
 s
ti
ll 

o
n
-g
o
in
g
, 
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 N
H
S
 B
a
rn
e
t 
a
s
 

y
e
t.
 

 

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

         

43



K
e
y
: 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

 
G
re
e
n
 =
 f
u
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
=
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
d
 =
 n
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

   

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
, 
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

S
C
P
B
 (
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 N
in
e
: 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 N
H
S
 B
a
rn
e
t 

to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

fo
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
, 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 f
o
r 
fr
o
n
t-

lin
e
 s
ta
ff
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 G

P
s
, 

a
c
c
id
e
n
t 
&
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 m

id
w
iv
e
s
) 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 

D
V
S
B
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

 

A
m
b
e
r 

S
C
P
B
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 (
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
) 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
: 
 

 T
h
e
 D
V
 C
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
h
a
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
t 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
G
P
 C
P
D
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 S
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
a
n
d
 E
d
g
w
a
re
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
o
n
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
, 

w
h
ic
h
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rp
e
tr
a
to
rs
. 

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 w
it
h
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 (
C
L
C
H
) 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 

b
e
in
g
 m

a
p
p
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 D
V
 C
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
a
ls
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
rt
e
d
 y
e
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
V
C
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 w
o
rk
 c
a
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
. 

 

M
a
n
ju
 L
u
k
h
m
a
n
 

–
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
–

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
iv
is
io
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

 

44



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 O

n
e
 

C
o

m
p

le
x
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g
 /

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
  

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
: 

 
�

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
(w

it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
y
in

g
 a

n
d
  

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

);
  
 

�
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
(w

it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 /
  

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

/ 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
  

o
n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
tu

a
l 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs

);
 a

n
d
  

�
 C

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 

lin
k
a
g
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 e
x
is

t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

  

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

4
 x

 I
n
te

ri
m

 S
u
p
p
lie

r 
R

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 (
S

R
M

) 
–
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

 
(P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

) 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
p
lo

y
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n
it
s
. 

F
o
rw

a
rd

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
la

n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

R
C

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 p

la
n
 f
u
tu

re
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

th
e
 s

o
u
rc

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
. 
  

 A
 c

e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 e

S
o
u
rc

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
is

 u
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
s
u
re

s
  

 A
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 
C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re

g
is

te
r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
lla

te
d
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 (
D

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

).
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 e

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
tr
a
in

in
g
 t
o
o
l.
 A

ll 
n
a
m

e
d
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
e
 t
e
s
t 
a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 m

a
te

ri
a
l.
 A

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

o
lk

it
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

re
e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
. 
T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

o
th

e
r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 m

o
n
th

s
. 

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 
s
p
e
c
if
y
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

s
 n

e
e
d
s
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 l
a
rg

e
, 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

45



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

a
n
d
 n

o
m

in
a
te

d
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
 

It
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 &
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
in

 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 
s
m

o
o
th

 p
h
a
s
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
 n

e
w

 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu

a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

. 
 

S
tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
 

s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 e

n
ti
re

 l
if
e
c
y
c
le

 a
re

 
n
o
t 
lo

s
t.
  
 

 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

m
o
re

 w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 o

n
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
in

k
a
g
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 S

R
M

 
a
n
d
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

 P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 G
re

e
n
 

 

   

46



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

 R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

w
o
 

D
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
in

 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
 

c
e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 t
o
: 
e
n
s
u
re

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ie
s
 o

f 
s
c
a
le

; 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
tr
o
l 
fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

; 
a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 

te
a
m

 h
a
s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
k
ill

s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 /
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
  

re
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
, 
w

it
h
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 b
e
in

g
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 
th

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 f
a
lli

n
g
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
ir
 r
e
m

it
.  

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

A
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 
te

a
m

 o
f 
S

u
p
p
lie

r 
R

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 –
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

re
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 v

e
n
d
o
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 S

A
P
 

s
y
s
te

m
. 

 S
y
s
te

m
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 p

ro
c
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

n
 

a
d
 h

o
c
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
O

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 
n
o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 r
is

e
n
 t
o
 

9
9
.9

%
 b

y
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 9

8
.8

5
%

 b
y
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r.
 

 L
in

k
a
g
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

, 
v
e
n
d
o
rs

 a
n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

s
tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
. 

 A
 s

p
e
n
d
 m

a
p
 b

y
 v

e
n
d
o
r 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
/g

o
o
d
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
. 
A

 d
ra

ft
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
-1

3
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 
a
re

 b
e
in

g
 t
ra

c
k
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

. 
 A

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
la

n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 b

e
y
o
n
d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 k

e
y
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
, 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

  U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 G
re

e
n
/A

m
b
e
r 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

47



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 w

a
s
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 b

y
 C

R
C

 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 
 

 In
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

o
l 
k
it
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll.
  

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
is

 c
e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 u
n
it
s
. 
  

 T
h
e
 r
e
v
is

e
d
 C

P
R

s
, 
if
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 s
tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 u
n
it
s
 a

s
 a

ll 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 
£
1
0
,0

0
0
 (
it
 i
s
 

p
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 £

2
5
,0

0
0
) 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 
te

a
m

. 
  
 

 
  C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

 R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

h
re

e
 

E
a
c
h
 a

re
a
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a

 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

A
d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
 o

f 
n
o
t 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 s

ix
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 m

e
e
t 
fo

u
r 

ti
m

e
s
 p

e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

 t
o
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a
te

 a
n
d
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 

u
s
e
r 
w

it
h
  

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 

A
M
B
E
R
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 R
e
d
 

 P
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 w

e
 a

re
 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
h
a
v
e
 a

 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
. 
D

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 J

u
d
ic

ia
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 w

e
 

w
ill

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
w

it
h
 C

a
p
it
a
.  

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

48



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

   C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 F

o
u
r 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t
o
: 

a
m

e
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

  
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 

o
u
tl
in

e
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
o
m

 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 
 

�
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 
fa

c
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

H
e
lp

d
e
s
k
; 
 

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

A
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
ft
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
o
o
lk

it
s
, 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 w
id

e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
 

 T
o
 d

a
te

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
: 

 

•
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

m
o
re

 w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
e
m

a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 f
o
r 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t.
  

•
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
e
lp

d
e
s
k
 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
n
e
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

. 
It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

te
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 h
e
lp

 d
e
s
k
 

w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
t 
u
p
. 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

49



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

�
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

‘B
u
s
in

e
s
s
’ 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
; 
  

�
 P

ro
v
id

in
g
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f
o
ru

m
s
 o

n
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
  

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

4
L
o
n
d
o
n
 p

o
rt
a
l;
  

�
 I
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 n

e
w

 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

: 
 

- 
V

e
n
d
o
rs

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
: 
lo

c
a
l 

jo
b
 o

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
  

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 B
a
rn

e
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 g

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 
w

o
rk

; 
a
n
d
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

  
tr
a
in

e
e
 o

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
; 
  

- 
A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
; 
a
n
d
  
 

- 
S

u
b
-c

o
n
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 p

a
rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a
in

 (
w

h
e
re

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
) 
to

  
lo

c
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
  

  

•
 

A
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,
 i
f 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
s
 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 o

th
e
rs

 s
ill

 b
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 h

o
w

 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
c
a
n
 u

s
e
 P

4
L
 t
o
 g

a
in

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

•
 

N
e
w

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

, 
w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
in

c
lu

d
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
u
b
-c

o
n
tr
a
c
to

rs
 –

 t
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
lis

m
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
rk

. 
 

 T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
lis

m
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 w

ill
 b

e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 

a
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 
V

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 
m

o
n
e
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
lo

c
a
lis

m
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
a
ili

n
g
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 p
ri
o
r 
to

 t
h
e
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 
n
e
w

 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

. 
 

  U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 G
re

e
n
 

 

     

50



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 F

iv
e
 

S
te

p
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

in
s
ti
tu

te
 a

 ‘
c
u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
’ 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
  

c
o
u
n
c
il,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 
 

�
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
fr
o
m

 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 

s
te

p
s
  

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
  

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 /
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
a
n
d
 t
o
  

o
u
tl
in

e
 t
h
e
 s

te
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

; 
  

�
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a

 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
 

s
ig

n
-o

ff
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu

a
l 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
; 
a
n
d
  

�
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 /
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
in

g
 s

e
t 

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 A
 w

e
e
k
ly

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
, 
w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a
s
. 
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
t 
9
9
.9

%
 b

y
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 9

8
.8

5
%

 b
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 a

 f
o
rt
n
ig

h
tl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

c
a
lle

d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
te

e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 a

s
 i
t 
is

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 t
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 t
o
o
l 
fo

r 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 s

ig
n
 o

ff
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 G
re

e
n
/A

m
b
e
r 

 A
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
to

o
l 
k
it
. 
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 u
n
it
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

51



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

m
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 

th
e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 v

e
n
d
o
rs

 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 m

it
ig

a
te

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
u
ild

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
, 

th
a
t 
w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 h

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 r
e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
b
o
a
rd

. 
T
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd
 

                      

52



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

 R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ix
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

A
P

 s
y
s
te

m
 

to
: 
 

�
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry

 f
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

; 
a
n
d
  

�
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
in

g
 

 

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 s
to

ri
n
g
 a

ll 
d
ig

it
is

e
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
R

e
p
o
s
it
o
ry

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 S

A
P

 h
a
s
 

th
e
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 u

p
lo

a
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
n
to

 m
e
m

o
ry

, 
th

e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 s

to
re

 a
ll 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 c
re

a
te

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

y
s
te

m
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
A

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 u

p
lo

a
d
 U

R
L
 l
in

k
a
g
e
s
 i
n
to

 S
A

P
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
. 

 A
ll 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

A
P

 a
re

 n
o
w

 b
a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 a

 S
A

P
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re

c
o
rd

. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 n
o
w

 r
o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 S

A
P

 r
e
p
o
rt
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
p
e
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 b

y
 v

e
n
d
o
r,
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

. 
 U

p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

 R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

A
P
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 t
o
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re

g
is

te
r 
a
n
d
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
r 
£
2
5
k
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

. 
  

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re

c
o
n
c
ile

d
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 o
v
e
r 
£
1
0
k
 a

s
 p

e
r 
th

e
 r
e
v
is

e
d
 

C
P

R
’s

, 
(r

e
v
is

e
d
 C

P
R

s
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
b
y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

    

53



54

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 

S
u

p
p

ly
 o

f 
S

e
c

o
n

d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c

e
s

  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

(a
c

c
e

p
te

d
) 

S
ta

tu
s
 

(R
A

G
) 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

 
C

o
n

ta
c

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

K
e

y
: 

G
re

e
n

 –
 f
u

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 

A
m

b
e

r 
–

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

R
e

d
 –

 n
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
la

y
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

O
n

e
 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 

fo
r 

s
e

c
o
n

d
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 

in
it
ia

lly
 b

y
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 t

o
 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

n
d
 

p
o

p
u

la
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 

 G
re

e
n

 
      

C
a

b
in

e
t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

A
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 t

w
o

, 
C

o
m

p
to

n
, 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 

C
o

p
th

a
ll 

a
re

, 
in

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
 t
o

 p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

tl
y
 

e
x
p

a
n

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o
l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

h
u

rc
h

 o
f 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 D
io

c
e

s
e

 o
n
 p

la
n

s
 

to
 c

lo
s
e
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 t
o

 e
x
p

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 a

n
d

 
S

t 
J
o

h
n

’s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

to
 a

n
 a

ll-
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l.
 A

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

in
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 c

o
n
fi
rm

s
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
e

e
k
 t
o
 p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

n
d
 p

o
p

u
la

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 C

h
u

rc
h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 
D

io
c
e

s
e

 o
n

 p
la

n
s
 t
o

 c
lo

s
e

 S
t 
M

a
ry

’s
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 t
o

 e
x
p

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
r 

S
t 

M
a

ry
’s

 a
n

d
 S

t 
J
o

h
n

’s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 i
n

to
 a

n
 a

ll-
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l,
 w

h
ic

h
 

is
 s

c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 t
o

 o
p

e
n

 i
n
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

4
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
1
2

0
 p

la
c
e

s
. 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 w

e
n

t 
to

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

in
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 c
o

n
fi
rm

in
g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
e

e
k
 t
o

 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

n
d
 p

o
p

u
la

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 /
 

C
a

y
lin

 J
o

s
k
i-
J
e

th
i 
–

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

55



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

t 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
T

h
e

 C
o

m
p
to

n
, 

C
h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
a

n
d

 C
o

p
th

a
ll,

 C
h

ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 h
a

s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 i
n

 S
e

p
t 
2

0
1

3
 w

h
ile

 C
o

p
th

a
ll 

is
 s

c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 p
la

c
e

s
 i
n

 S
e
p

t 
2
0

1
4

. 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

t 
T

h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
 a

n
d

 C
h

ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

. 
T

h
e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 f
o
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

t 
C

o
p

th
a

ll 
h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n

 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

T
w

o
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
to

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
n

o
n

-
d

e
n
o

m
in

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a
n

d
 

c
o

-e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

n
d

 G
a

rd
e
n

 
S

u
b

u
rb

 a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

m
e

e
t 

th
is

 d
e
m

a
n

d
. 

T
h
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
th

e
s
e

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

a
n

e
l.
  

 G
re

e
n

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
, 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
p

th
a

ll 
a
re

, 
in

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
 t

o
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
. 
T

h
e

 a
im

 i
s
 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 b

y
 3

0
 p

la
c
e

s
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a

r,
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 w

it
h

 T
h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

2
, 

C
h

ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 i
n

 2
0
1

3
 a

n
d

 C
o

p
th

a
ll 

in
 2

0
1
4

. 
T

h
e

 
(n

o
w

 e
x
p

a
n

d
e

d
) 

C
o
m

p
to

n
 h

a
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
 f
ix

e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 

n
a

m
e

d
 f
e

e
d

e
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n
 t

h
e
 N

2
 a

n
d

 N
3

 p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
 a

re
a

s
. 

C
h
ri
s
t’
s
 

C
o

lle
g
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
p

th
a

ll 
(s

in
g
le

 s
e

x
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
) 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 o
ff
e

r 
p

la
c
e

s
 t
o

 s
ib

lin
g
s
 f
ro

m
 e

a
c
h

 o
th

e
r’
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
n
o

n
-d

e
n

o
m

in
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 f
o

r 
p

u
p
ils

 o
f 
b

o
th

 s
e

x
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

re
a

. 
 A

 f
re

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
fo

r 
a

 n
e

w
 n

o
n

-d
e
n

o
m

in
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
(t

h
e

 A
rc

h
e

r 
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
) 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 o
p

e
n
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
B

a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 
fr

e
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

lo
c
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
, 

a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

a
n

d
 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 /
 

C
a

y
lin

 J
o

s
k
i-
J
e

th
i 
–

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

56



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

rs
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 p

re
p

a
re

 t
o

 j
o

in
 t

h
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
fa

m
ily

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

C
h

ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 h
a

s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n
d

 C
o
p

th
a

ll 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

m
it
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
4

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
 h

a
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
 f
ix

e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 n

a
m

e
d
 

fe
e

d
e

r 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

 N
2

 a
n

d
 N

3
 p

o
s
tc

o
d

e
 a

re
a

s
. 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
a

n
d

 C
o

p
th

a
ll 

(s
in

g
le

-s
e

x
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
) 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 o
ff
e

r 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 

s
ib

lin
g
s
 f

ro
m

 e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r’
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 h
e

lp
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
n
o

n
-

d
e

n
o

m
in

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 o

f 
b

o
th

 s
e

x
e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 E
a

s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

re
a

. 
 T

h
e

 A
rc

h
e

r 
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
, 

a
 n

e
w

 n
o

n
-d

e
n
o

m
in

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

e
d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
a
l 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 f
re

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l,
 h

a
s
 a

 s
it
e

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

 h
e
a

d
 t
e

a
c
h

e
r.

 T
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 3

1
4

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
S

e
p

t 
2

0
1
3

, 
w

it
h

 1
5

0
 p

la
c
e

s
 o

n
 o

ff
e

r.
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 
fr

e
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

lo
c
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
, 

a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

T
h

re
e
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
re

m
a

in
s
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 n
e

w
 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 

d
ia

lo
g
u

e
 w

it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 

fa
m

ily
 o

f 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 

fa
it
h

 b
o

d
ie

s
, 

e
n

a
b

lin
g
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

 G
re

e
n

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

T
o
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
h
e

a
d

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u
re

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 d
ia

lo
g
u

e
 o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 

tw
o

 g
ro

u
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 s

e
t 
u

p
. 

A
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
a
n

d
 P

la
c
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 t
o

 a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

ru
m

 o
n

 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t,

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
c
a

tc
h

m
e

n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
; 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 F

o
ru

m
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t
h
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
m

u
tu

a
l 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

h
a
re

d
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

/e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

c
o

lle
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
a

n
 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 /
 

C
a

y
lin

 J
o

s
k
i-
J
e

th
i 
–

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

57



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

a
lly

 r
a

is
e

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 
S

c
h

o
o
l 

p
la

c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

ls
o

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

a
g
e

n
d
a

 i
te

m
 a

t 
m

e
e

ti
n
g
s
 

w
it
h

 h
e

a
d

s
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

T
h
e

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
a
n

d
 P

la
c
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 F

o
ru

m
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
u

n
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 a
n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
. 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 c

o
n

ti
n
u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

a
g
e
n

d
a

 i
te

m
 a

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 
h

e
a
d

s
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
. 
 

 A
 p

ilo
t 

‘L
o

c
a

l 
H

e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 G

ro
u
p

’ 
w

a
s
 t

ri
a
lle

d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

 
o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 h

e
a

d
 t
e

a
c
h

e
rs

 i
n

 a
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 a
re

a
 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 o

n
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l.
 D

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 a

n
 a

ll-
d

a
y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
h

e
a
d

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
in

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

re
a

 g
ro

u
p

s
 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 l
o
c
a

l 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

F
o

u
r 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 
a

re
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 t

h
e

 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
in

 B
a

rn
e

t.
 

 A
m

b
e

r 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tu
d

io
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
to

 w
id

e
n

 t
h
e

 b
re

a
d

th
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t.
 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 a

n
d
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 s

it
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u
g
h

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 
A

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d
 S

o
u

th
g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 D

im
e
n

s
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 

to
 a

 n
e

w
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
L

e
a
n

in
g
 D

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
. 

 M
e

a
n

w
h

ile
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 l
a
u

n
c
h
e

d
 a

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o
 o

ff
e

r 
1
6

-2
4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

c
a

re
e

rs
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

in
te

rn
s
h

ip
s
, 
p
a

id
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
. 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 /
 

E
la

in
e

 R
u
n

s
w

ic
k
 –

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

58



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

A
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d
 S

o
u

th
g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 D

im
e
n

s
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 

c
re

a
te

d
 a

 n
e

w
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
. 

 In
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
2

, 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

la
u

n
c
h

e
d

 t
h

e
 ‘
P

la
tf
o
rm

s
’ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
1

6
-2

4
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
c
a

re
e

rs
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

in
te

rn
s
h

ip
s
, 

p
a

id
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
. 

£
2

0
0

,0
0
0

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 

in
to

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
. 

 A
 n

e
w

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h

 s
ix

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 B
a
rn

e
t 
a

n
d
 

S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
n
o

n
 A

 L
e
v
e

l 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 w

o
u

ld
 w

a
n

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 a
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 t
o

 a
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 C
o

lle
g
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a

r 
1

2
. 

 A
n

 A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
 C

lu
b

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 i
n

 f
o

u
r 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 

p
re

p
a

re
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

o
rl
d

 o
f 

w
o

rk
. 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 b
id

 t
o
 o

p
e

n
 a

 S
tu

d
io

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 f
in

d
in

g
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o
n

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

F
iv

e
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 
th

e
 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 
u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 

fi
n
d

in
g
 m

o
re

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

u
p

il 
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
U

n
it
. 
 

 A
m

b
e

r 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

T
h
e

 s
e
a

rc
h

 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

it
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 P
u

p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a

l 
U

n
it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
y
ie

ld
e

d
 a

n
y
 v

ia
b

le
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
e

 s
e
a

rc
h
 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

D
fE

 h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 T

a
y
lo

r 
re

p
o

rt
 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 –
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

59



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
in

g
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
h

e
a
d

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 a
b

o
u

t 
fu

tu
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
p

il 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
u

n
it
. 
 

 

60



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 

 
1

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
T
a
s
k
 &
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 O
n
e
 

 F
a
m
ily
 P
ro
fi
lin
g
 a
n
d
 

fa
m
ily
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
s
 

th
e
s
e
 w
ill
 d
e
liv
e
r 
g
re
a
te
r 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
a
re
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

e
le
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

c
o
s
ts
/b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

     

  G
re
e
n
 

    

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

 A
s
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
, 
fa
m
ily
 p
ro
fi
lin
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 i
s
 a
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
  
o
f 
o
u
r 

F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 a
re
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 f
a
m
ily
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 T
ro
u
b
le
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

 B
a
rn
e
t 
h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 3
2
2
 o
f 
o
u
r 
7
0
5
 t
ro
u
b
le
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 
  

 W
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
w
e
 c
a
n
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
fu
ll 
c
o
h
o
rt
 i
n
 t
w
o
 r
a
th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 o
u
r 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 w
e
ll 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 d
o
 

th
a
t.
  
 

 W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c
la
im
e
d
 f
o
r 
2
5
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
n
d
 h
o
p
e
 

to
 b
e
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
la
im
 f
o
r 
c
2
0
0
 –
 2
5
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 J
u
ly
. 
  

   

    J
a
y
 M
e
rc
e
r/
 S
tu
a
rt
 

C
o
lli
n
s
 

61



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 

 
2

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 
S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

    R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
w
o
 

 T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 &
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 

o
f 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
y
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
re
s
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
ig
h
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

a
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

re
c
o
n
s
id
e
r.
 

 

    n
/a
 

    

 U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

  N
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
 

 

 

62



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 

 
3

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

   R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
h
re
e
 

 T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 N
u
rt
u
re
 

G
ro
u
p
s
 a
s
 

a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
m
e
th
o
d
 o
f 

in
te
rv
e
n
in
g
 e
a
rl
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

in
 t
h
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 

u
ti
lis
e
 t
h
e
ir
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 N
u
rt
u
re
 

G
ro
u
p
s
, 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 

b
e
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 

F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 a
t 
th
e
 

e
a
rl
ie
s
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 

        G
re
e
n
 

  

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

 T
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
n
u
rt
u
ri
n
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

it
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
a
re
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 t
e
a
m
. 
W
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 F
a
m
ily
 L
in
k
’s
 N
u
rt
u
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
, 
a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p
a
re
n
ts
. 

 A
ll 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 F
a
m
ily
 L
in
k
 a
re
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 o
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 
o
n
lin
e
, 

s
o
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
’ 
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
o
 

p
a
re
n
ts
. 
P
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 r
e
fe
r 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

 It
 i
s
 a
n
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 o
f 
P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
. 
 P
a
re
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
 a
t 
a
 

le
v
e
l 
1
 o
r 
2
. 
 

 4
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 t
ra
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
t,
 B
ru
n
s
w
ic
k
 P
a
rk
, 
N
o
rt
h
s
id
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
, 
 D
e
a
n
s
b
ro
o
k
 J
u
n
io
r 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 M
a
n
o
rs
id
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
. 
B
ru
n
s
w
ic
k
 P
a
rk
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 h
a
v
e
 t
w
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
t 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
. 

 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
t 
fo
r 
W
o
o
d
c
ro
ft
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l.
 I
n
 M
a
y
 w
e
 

w
ill
 s
ta
rt
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
c
o
u
rs
e
 a
t 
T
u
d
o
r 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 

  3
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
-U
n
d
e
rh
ill
, 
W
in
g
fi
e
ld
 a
n
d
 

B
a
rn
fi
e
ld
. 
P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
t 
C
la
re
m
o
n
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l.
 

 S
in
c
e
 2
0
1
0
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 F
a
m
ily
 L
in
k
 N
u
rt
u
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 5
 

ti
m
e
s
 t
o
 9
7
 p
a
re
n
ts
. 

   

        J
a
y
 M
e
rc
e
r/
 S
tu
a
rt
 

C
o
lli
n
s
 

63



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 

 
4

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

F
o
u
r 

 T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 &
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 

o
f 
C
h
ild
 &
 A
d
o
le
s
c
e
n
t 

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(C
A
M
H
S
) 
in
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 u
rg
e
n
t 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

B
a
rn
e
t,
 E
n
fi
e
ld
 a
n
d
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

T
ru
s
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 

C
A
M
H
S
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

B
a
rn
e
t.
  

   

    G
re
e
n
 

   

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

   E
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 C
A
M
H
S
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 u
p
 t
o
 6
 w
e
e
k
s
 o
f 
e
a
rl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 i
t.
  
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
th
w
a
y
 t
o
 T
ie
r 
3
 

C
A
M
H
s
 v
ia
 a
 C
A
F
 i
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

C
A
M
H
S
. 
 A
t 
3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
, 
8
6
 C
A
F
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ro
u
te
 i
n
to
 

T
ie
r 
3
 C
A
M
H
S
. 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 B
a
rn
e
t,
 E
n
fi
e
ld
 a
n
d
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

T
ru
s
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t.
  
O
n
 

1
8
th
 A
p
ri
l 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
 p
a
p
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 f
u
tu
re
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 B
a
rn
e
t 
C
C
G
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
A
M
H
S
. 
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 
C
C
G
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
 m
o
re
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 a
 k
e
y
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 W
e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
-2
0
1
5
. 
 T
h
e
 C
A
M
H
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
-c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
3
, 
w
it
h
 a
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
ro
m
 1
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 
  

   

     J
a
y
 M
e
rc
e
r/
 S
tu
a
rt
 

C
o
lli
n
s
 

64



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 

 
5

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 F
iv
e
 

 T
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 

th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 (
C
A
F
) 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

(M
A
G
) 
in
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
ts
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 n
e
x
t 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
 

   G
re
e
n
 

T
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 M
A
G
 t
o
 i
ts
 S
L
T
 a
n
d
 n
o
 r
is
k
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 C
A
F
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 H
u
b
, 
(M
A
S
H
),
 d
u
e
 f
o
r 
la
u
n
c
h
 i
n
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 

 C
A
F
 

 O
v
e
ra
ll 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
p
e
n
 C
A
F
s
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 6
6
%
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 

ti
m
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
A
F
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 m
o
re
 

e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 b
e
e
n
 a
s
s
is
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
lis
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
im
p
lif
y
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 F
o
rm
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
1
1
, 
a
n
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 

th
a
t 
th
e
 C
A
F
 i
s
 n
o
w
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

to
o
l 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

(C
A
F
s
) 
B
e
tw
e
e
n
 0
1
/1
0
/1
2
 –
 

3
1
/0
3
/1
3
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
A
F
s
 

s
te
p
p
e
d
-u
p
 t
o
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

1
5
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
A
F
s
 

c
lo
s
e
d
 a
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m
e
t 

5
1
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
A
F
s
 

s
te
p
p
e
d
-d
o
w
n
 

fr
o
m
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 t
o
 

C
A
F
 a
re
n
a
 *
 

7
2
 

 P
a
s
to
ra
l 
c
a
re
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
in
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 b
y
 f
a
r 
th
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
C
A
F
 i
n
it
ia
to
rs
 (
3
8
8
 o
r 

   J
a
y
 M
e
rc
e
r/
 S
tu
a
rt
 

C
o
lli
n
s
 

65



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 

 
6

5
2
%
 o
f 
a
ll 
o
p
e
n
 C
A
F
s
) 
a
n
d
 L
e
a
d
 P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 a
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
re
 w
e
ll 
p
la
c
e
d
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
in
it
ia
to
rs
 

a
re
 I
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 W
o
rk
e
rs
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
A
F
 a
s
 t
h
e
ir
 m
a
in
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

to
o
l,
 a
n
d
 t
h
ir
d
ly
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

 M
A
G
s
 

S
in
c
e
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
, 
th
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
h
re
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
M
A
G
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
. 
T
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

te
a
m
s
 w
it
h
in
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 a
im
 t
o
 t
ro
u
b
le
-s
h
o
o
t 
C
A
F
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 s
tu
c
k
, 
o
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
rs
. 

 O
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 c
a
s
e
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 t
h
e
 M
A
G
s
 s
in
c
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 (
a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
1
2
 

c
a
s
e
s
),
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
m
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

d
e
e
m
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 (
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 L
e
a
d
 P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
, 
o
r 
th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
N
E
E
T
, 
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 

s
e
e
m
 c
le
a
re
r 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 r
o
le
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
).
 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
ix
 

 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 e
x
it
 t
h
e
 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
g
re
e
d
 e
x
it
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

 

  G
re
e
n
 

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 p
la
n
 e
x
it
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 f
u
lly
. 
W
e
 m
a
k
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 c
o
n
ta
c
t.
 

 P
h
a
s
e
 2
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
a
c
h
e
s
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 t
o
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
a
c
h
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
u
ld
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
s
o
m
e
 

o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 

 K
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 g
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r,
 (
e
.g
. 
w
h
e
n
 e
x
it
in
g
 f
a
m
ily
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
),
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 

  J
a
y
 M
e
rc
e
r/
 S
tu
a
rt
 

C
o
lli
n
s
 

66



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 

 
7

a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
a
id
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
h
ils
t 
a
ls
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 p
h
a
s
e
 2
 p
ro
to
ty
p
e
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
a
c
h
e
s
 c
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
 

p
e
o
p
le
; 
 

•
 
(r
e
)c
o
n
n
e
c
t 
w
it
h
 f
a
m
ily
, 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m
o
re
 w
id
e
ly
, 
 

•
 
h
e
lp
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
in
d
 o
u
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

•
 
fi
n
d
 w
a
y
s
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 e
.g
. 
in
te
rg
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
 –
 

re
a
d
in
g
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
, 
te
a
c
h
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
 

•
 
re
g
a
in
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 

•
 
a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 h
o
u
s
in
g
  

 A
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 -
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m
 y
o
u
th
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r.
 

 T
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
h
a
s
e
 3
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
a
c
h
e
s
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 a
im
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 a
n
d
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
£
4
4
0
,0
0
0
 

 T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 
A
p
ri
l’s
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

 

67



68

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Date 2 May 2013 

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 
2012/13 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary The Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report, attached at 
Appendix A, provides the Council with details of 
overview and scrutiny work undertaken during 2012/13. 

 

Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood, Overview and Scrutiny Manager 

Anita Vukomanovic, Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix – Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 
2012/13 

For decision by Council 

Contact for further information:  

Andrew Charlwood, Overview and Scrutiny Manager 

020 8359 2014, andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 11

69



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the Committee endorse the Overview & Scrutiny Annual Report 

2012/13 as set out at Appendix A for onward referral to Council. 
 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Council, 19 May 2009, ‘Report of the Special Committee (Constitution 

Review), 21 April 2009, ‘Overview & Scrutiny: New Arrangements’ 
 
2.2 Policy and Performance Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 13 April 2010, 

‘Scrutiny Review of Effectiveness’ 
 
2.3 Business Management Overview & Scrutiny sub-Committee, 16 December 

2010, ‘Overview & Scrutiny Review’ 
 
2.4 Policy and Performance Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 6 April 2011, 

Overview & Scrutiny Review 
 
2.5 Special Committee (Constitution Review), 6 April 2011, Overview & Scrutiny 

Review 
 
2.6 Annual Council, 17 May 2011, Report of the Special Committee (Constitution 

Review) 
 
2.7 Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 11 July 2011, 

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2010/11 
 
2.8 Council, 12 July 2011, Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2010/11 
 
2.9 Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 April 2012, 

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2011/12 
 
2.10 Council, 10 July 2012, Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2011/12 
 
2.11 Council, 16 April 2013, Report of the Constitution, Ethics and Probity 

Committee – Council approved a report from Constitution, Ethics and Probity 
Committee which included the establishment of the following new committees: 

• Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

• Education Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS  
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees must ensure that the work of Scrutiny 

is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 
3.2 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2013 – 2016 Corporate Plan are: – 

70



 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the 
borough. 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, 
learning and well-being. 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a legislative duty to have 

‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality and 
fostering good relations in the contexts of age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, religion or belief and sexual 
orientation. 

 
5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as 

relating to matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the 
Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; 
and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment 
and retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff 
development, equalities and health and safety. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 Any financial implications arising from overview and scrutiny work will be 

addressed in individual reports to the relevant decision-making body. 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
 
7.1 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 provides that the Executive 

arrangements by a local authority must:  
 

(1)   include provision for the appointment by the authority of one or more 
overview and scrutiny committees. 

 

71



 

(2)   ensure that their overview and scrutiny committees have power between 
them –  

i) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in 
connection with the discharge of any functions which are the 
responsibility of the executive, 

ii) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 
with respect to the discharge of any functions which are the 
responsibility of the executive, 

iii) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in 
connection with the discharge of any functions which are not the 
responsibility of the executive, 

iv) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 
with respect to the discharge of any functions which are not the 
responsibility of the executive, 

v) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 
on matters which affect the authority's area or the inhabitants of that 
area”. 

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1     The scope of Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Overview and Scrutiny committees are set out 

in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution). 
 
8.3 Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7 requires that the Business 

Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee will, each year, produce an 
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for Council. 

 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Revised Overview & Scrutiny arrangements have been introduced in May 

2009 and May 2011.   
 

9.2 When the revised scrutiny arrangements were implemented in May 2009, it 
was agreed that the effectiveness of the Overview & Scrutiny function should 
be reviewed annually. 

 
9.3 In accordance with the requirement, a review of effectiveness was carried out 

in early 2011.  As a consequence of the findings of the review, the council 
adopted a revised Overview & Scrutiny structure in May 2011.  

 
9.4 Under the current structure, the council has four Overview & Scrutiny 

Committees, together with scope for the establishment of Panels and Task 
and Finish Groups. 

72



 

 
9.5 On 16 April 2013, the Council approved the establishment of two new 

committees: Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and 
Education Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
9.6 Appendix A provides a summary of the work undertaken by Barnet’s 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels, and Task and Finish Groups 
during 2011/12.  It also provides an outline of work planned for the 2012/13 
municipal year. 

 
9.7 The Committee are requested to endorse the Overview and Scrutiny Annual 

Report 2012/13 for reporting to Council.   
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance JH 

Cleared by Legal  POJ 

  
 
 
 

73



74

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

 
Barnet Council 

 
 

Overview and 
Scrutiny  

Annual Report 
 
 

2012/13 
 
 

 

75



 
 
 

What is Overview and Scrutiny? 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny function was formally introduced in local authorities 
by the Local Government Act 2000, and later extended under the Health and 
Social Care Act (2001) for (Health Scrutiny), as part of the, then, government’s 
modernisation agenda.  
  
Overview and Scrutiny is delivered through a committee structure and Councillors 
who are not part of the Executive sit on these Committees. Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees hold the Council’s Cabinet to account by examining various 
functions of the Council, asking questions about how decisions have been made 
and considering whether service improvements are needed. Overview and 
Scrutiny also raises issues that are important to local people and scrutinises the 
performance of the Council and partner organisations.  It is a key mechanism for 
driving forward service improvement. 
 
The Centre for Public Scrutiny Good Scrutiny Guide defines four principles of 
effective public scrutiny: 
 

1. Challenge: to provide a ''critical friend'' challenge to executive policy-
makers, external authorities and decision-makers  

 

2. Engagement: to reflect the voice and concerns of the public and its 
communities  

 

3. Leadership: to support Community leadership and effective 
representation 

 

4. Performance Improvement: to drive improvement in public services  

76



 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny in Barnet 
 
The London Borough of Barnet has 63 Councillors. The Executive (or Cabinet) is 
made up of the Leader of the Council and nine other Councillors. The other 
remaining non-executive Councillors are appointed to sit on Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees or other committees (e.g. planning or licensing committees) 
which are responsible for carrying out a range of governance functions for the 
Council. 
  
In 2012/13 Scrutiny was delivered under the following structure: 
 

 
 
Under this structure there are two committees which deal with statutory matters 
(Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Business Management Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee) and two other committees (Budget & Performance Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee and Safeguarding Overview & Scrutiny Committee). This 
structure was implemented in May 2011 following a review of the scrutiny 
arrangements introduced in May 2009.   
 
 

 
 

COUNCIL 

BUSINESS 
MANAGEMENT 

OSC 

BUDGET & 
PERFORMANCE 
OSC (including 
ONE BARNET) 

HEALTH 
OSC 

SAFEGUARDING 
OSC 

TASK AND FINISH 
GROUPS 

77



 
 
 

Overview and  
Scrutiny Committees 

 
Business Management Overview  

& Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee has a wide ranging 
remit and its terms of reference includes many of the statutory powers conferred 
upon overview and scrutiny committees (including call-ins, councillor calls for 
action and crime and disorder scrutiny) and consideration of policy and strategy 
not in the remit of other committees.  During 2012/13 the Committee continued its 
management of the call-in process and, in addition, appointed to, monitored the 
work of and tracked the implementation of recommendations made by Task & 
Finish Groups and Overview & Scrutiny Panels.  It also considered reports on: 
 

• Barnet Skills, Employment and Enterprise Action Plan (June 2012) 

• Housing Allocations Scheme Review (November 2012) 

• Crime and Disorder Scrutiny – Update on the Implementation of the Safer 
Communities Strategy 2011/12 - 2014/15 (November 2012) 

• Welfare Reform – Council Tax Support Scheme and Crisis Fund 
(December 2012) 

• Saracens Controlled Parking Zone Update (February 2013) 

• Town Centre Strategies for Chipping Barnet and Edgware (March 2013) 

 
Petitions 

 
Following legislative changes arising from the Local Democracy, Economic 
Development and Construction Act 2009, the Committee took on additional 
responsibility for considering petitions which had received between 2,000 and 
7,000 signatures, triggering a provision to ‘call an officer to account’.  Petitions 
were considered in relation to the following issues: 
 

• Pedestrian Safety – East Finchley (June 2012) 

• Friern Barnet Library Petition (July 2012) 

• Stop the One Barnet Programme (October 2012) 

 
In relation to the Pedestrian Safety East Finchley petition, a representative from 
the Walk Safe N2 campaign group was given an opportunity to address the 

78



 
 
 

committee and ask questions of the Cabinet Member for Environment and 
Highways Officers, the Assistant Director of Customer Services and Libraries and 
the Head of Libraries.  The petition raised issues about safety concerns in the 
area.  Following the debate, the matter was referred to the Finchley and Golders 
Green Area Environment Sub-Committee for consideration.   
 
In relation to the Friern Barnet Library petition, the lead petitioner was given the 
opportunity to address the committee and ask questions of the Cabinet Member 
for Customer Access and Partnerships and the Assistant Director for Customer 
Services.  The petition requested the re-opening of the library.  Following 
discussion on the item, the Committee referred the petition to the Cabinet (via the 
Cabinet Member for Customer Access and Partnerships) to respond to the issues 
raised.   
 
In relation to the Stop the One Barnet Programme petition, the lead petitioner 
was given the opportunity to address the committee and ask questions of the 
Deputy Chief Executive.  The petition called for a referendum on the One Barnet 
Programme.  Following discussion on the item, the Deputy Chief Executive 
referred the representations made by the petitioners and the committee to the 
responsible Cabinet Members for response (via the officer called to account).   
On 20th November 2012, the Committee received and considered the Executive 
response to the issues raised in the petition and asked questions of the Cabinet 
Member for Customer Access and Partnerships.  Following consideration of the 
Executive response, the Committee made a submission to the Cabinet and 
requested details of learning from other authorities.   
 
In addition to the petitions referred to above, on 20th November 2012 the 
Committee also received a six month update on the Reverse Parking Charges 
petition, originally considered in February 2012.  The Cabinet Member for 
Environment addressed the committee and outlined planned changes to parking 
arrangements in the borough.   
 

 
Call in 

 
The Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the (statutory) 
power to ‘call-in’ a qualifying key decision before it is implemented.  Calling-in a 
decision allows Overview and Scrutiny Members to review and challenge key 
decisions after they have been taken, but before implementation.  Cabinet 
Members and Officers regularly attend the Business Management Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee to answer questions and provide information to the 
Committee members. 
 
Only key decisions as defined by Article 13 (b) (i) of the Constitution may be 
called in under Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000. 
 
A key decision under Article 13 (b) (i) 
 

79



 
 
 

a. must involve expenditure or savings in excess of £500,000 as well as 
otherwise being significant having regard to the council’s budget for the 
service or function to which the decision relates, or 

b. to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in 
an area comprising two or more wards in the borough 

 
In 2012/13, the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
considered 8 call-in requests.  Full details of the items called in during 2012/13 
are shown in Appendix 1. 
 
 
 
 

Budget and Performance Overview  
& Scrutiny Committee 

 
In 2012/13 the Budget and Performance Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
continued its regular scrutiny of the Council’s corporate performance information 
and improvement initiatives, and financial performance data.  The Committee 
also continued its scrutiny of the Strategic Outline Cases, Business Cases and 
Closures Reports for the projects within the One Barnet Programme.  
 
During the year, the Committee considered reports on: 
 

• Leisure Review Strategic Outline Case (June 2012) 

• Implementation of Initiatives to Contribute to the Safer Communities 
Strategy (June 2012) 

• Quarter 4 and Year End Financial and Corporate Performance 2011/12 
(June 2012) 

• Members’ Item – Customer Services Transformation for Revenues & 
Benefits Risk Assessment (June 2012) 

• Early Intervention and Prevention Strategic Outline Case (September 
2012) 

• Sport and Physical Activity Review Strategic Outline Case (September 
2012) 

• Business Planning 2012/13 – 2014/15 (September 2012) 

• Members’ Item – Development and Regulatory Services Project 
(September 2012) 

• Quarter One 2012/13 Finance and Corporate Performance (October 2012) 

• Commercial Property Income (October 2012) 

• New Support and Customer Services Organisation: Recommendation for a 
Preferred and Reserve Bidder and Final Business Case (November 2012) 

80



 
 
 

• Barnet Group Performance Report – April to September 2012 (January 
2013)  

• Quarter Two 2012/13 Finance and Corporate Performance (January 2013) 

• Budget Scrutiny – Business Planning 2013/14 – 2015/16 (February 2013) 

• Quarter Three 2012/13 Finance and Corporate Performance (March 2013) 

• Adoption Service Performance (March 2013) 

• One Barnet Programme Highlight Report (March 2013) 

• Initiatives to Contribute to the Safer Communities Strategy (March 2013) 

 

 

In relation to scrutiny of the council’s performance against Corporate Plan 
performance targets, the Committee made a number of recommendations to 
Cabinet Members and officers in relation to areas of underperformance and 
associated service improvement initiatives.  In addition, the Committee also had 
oversight of the council’s Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy and made 
a number of recommendations in this regard.   
 
In addition to the budget and performance scrutiny activity outlined above, the 
Committee scrutinised a number of project updates, output specifications, 
business cases and closure reports in relation to the One Barnet programme.  
Following consideration of these items, a number of recommendations were 
made to the Cabinet Resources Committee and officers. 

Scrutiny of the Council’s budget remained the key focus of the Committee.  The 
September 2012 meeting was dedicated to performance against the financial 
savings set out in the council’s Business Planning 2012/13 to 2014/15 proposals. 
Further scrutiny of the budget proposals took place in February 2013 and 
comments and recommendations made by the committee were referred to full 
Council for adoption in March 2013.   

 

Safeguarding Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
Throughout 2012/13 the Safeguarding Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
continued its scrutiny of the work of the Independent Safeguarding Children’s 
Board, and Barnet’s Multi- Agency Safeguarding Board. The Committee’s work 
programme reflected the work taking place to drive improvements in the provision 
of education and social care for children and young people and adults in need of 
social care support.  
 
In 2012/13 the Committee considered reports on: 
 

• Children’s Centres – Update on Public Consultation (June 2012) 

81



 
 
 

• Choice and Achievement – Draft Special Educational Needs and Inclusion 
Strategy (June 2012) 

• Personalisation in Adult Social Care – Self Directed Support Position 
Statement (June 2012) 

• Quality in Residential Care Homes for Older Adults (June 2012) 

• Day Opportunities for Older People – Neighbourhood Model (September 
2012) 

• Barnet Multi-Agency Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2011/12 
(September 2012) 

• Barnet Independent Safeguarding Children’s Board Annual Report 
2011/12 (September 2012) 

• Ofsted Inspection of Safeguarding and Looked After Children (September 
2012) 

• Barnet LINk – Update Report (September 2012) 

• Adult Social Care and Health: Caring for Our Future White Paper; Care 
and Support Bill; and Funding Reform for Adult Social Care (September 
2012) 

• Carers Support (December 2012) 

• Exam Results and Narrowing the Gap (December 2012) 

• Barnet LINk – Annual Report 2011/12 and Enter & View Reports 
(December 2012) 

• Members’ Visits (December 2012) 

• Youth Shield Presentation (March 2013) 

• Barnet LINk – Enter & View Reports (March 2013) 

• Barbara Langstone House: Decant Process (March 2013) 

• Review of Funding for Education Provision at Northgate Pupil Referral Unit 
Alongside Tier 4 Mental Health (March 2013) 

 
In considering the items above, the Committee made a number of comments and 
recommendations to the relevant Cabinet Members and officers.  
 
 
 

Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee had a very productive and 
challenging work programme in 2012/13.  The work programme reflected 
changes facing local NHS services and the wider national health reforms. The 
Committee scrutinised the Quality Accounts of Barnet’s health providers and 
provided statements for inclusion in each.  The Committee also received reports 
on: 

82



 
 
 

 

• London Trauma Services (May 2012) 

• NHS Quality Accounts (May 2012) from:   

- The North London Hospice; 

- The Royal Free Hospital 

- Central London Community Healthcare 

- Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals  

• Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy Update (September 2012) 

• Developing Primary Care in Barnet (September 2012) 

• Clinical Commissioning Group Implementation (September 2012) 

• Urgent Care Pathway Update (September 2012) 

• Maternity Services Divert Report (September 2012) 

• Ageing Well (December 2012) 

• Barnet and Chase Farm NHS Trust – Maternity and Accident & 
Emergency Services Update (December 2012) 

• Barnet LINk - Patient Access to GP Services and Elysian House Enter & 
View Report (December 2012)   

• Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy – Ambulance Services 
(February 2013) 

• Royal Free Hospital - Potential Acquisition of Barnet and Chase Farm 
Hospital (February 2013) 

• Central London Community Health Care Foundation Trust Application – 
Stakeholder Engagement (February 2013)  

 
In scrutinising the items above, the Committee made a number of 
recommendations to health partners on their plans / strategies and ongoing 
delivery of health services within the borough.  In addition, Committee Members 
raised a number of service related issues through Members Items and sought 
information from health partners on these.  The Committee also considered the 
Quality Accounts of health partners operating within Barnet and made formal 
comments for inclusion in the Accounts.   
 
The Committee’s Chairman and other Committee Members continued to 
represent Barnet at meetings of the North Central London Sector Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, alongside neighbouring Councils, Camden, 
Enfield, Haringey and Islington. These meetings were attended by senior staff of 
NHS services across the North Central London sector where trends, pressures 
and priorities were regularly discussed.   Minutes of the Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee are now included in agenda for the Barnet Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to ensure that Barnet Members have an 
effective oversight of this work.   

 

83



 
 
 

Task and Finish Groups 
 

Task and Finish Groups comprise five elected councillors who work together to 
undertake in-depth reviews of a service, policy or issue of concern to local 
people.  Task and Finish Groups are time limited and normally complete their 
review within three months of being established, although this timescale is 
flexible and dependent on the topic under review.   
 
The Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee is responsible for 
coordinating and monitoring the work of Task and Finish Group.  The Committee 
consider topics suggested by non-Executive Members and determine which will 
progress to review.  Once a review has been convened, political groups nominate 
councillors to serve on each Task and Finish Group.  Task and Finish Groups are 
empowered to determine their own terms of reference and what evidence they 
wish to receive.  At the conclusion of a review, the Task and Finish Group will 
make evidence based recommendations to the Cabinet or relevant partner 
organisation.   
 
During 2012/13, one Task and Finish Group completed a review into the 
Effectiveness of Task and Finish Groups.  This Group reported its findings to 
Cabinet on 18 April 2013.  
 
During 2011/12, the Scrutiny Office introduced a mechanism to track the 
progress made by the council (or public sector partners) in implementing 
recommendations made by Task and Finish Groups which had been accepted by 
the relevant decision making body.  Updates are regularly reported to the 
Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee, providing Scrutiny 
Members with an opportunity to monitor the outcomes of their work and challenge 
areas where they feel inadequate progress has been made.  Reporting of 
updates continued during 2012/13.   

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Panels 

 
Scrutiny Panels operate in a similar way to Task and Finish Groups but comprise 
seven members (with substitutes) and some of their meetings are held in public.  
Scrutiny Panels also review services, policies or issues of concern to local 
people.  In 2012/13 the Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
convened a Scrutiny Panel to consider the Education Strategy for Barnet.   
 
This Panel was convened  to consider the role of local authority governors in the 
new education landscape.  As part of the evidence gathering, the Panel met with 
head teachers, parent governors from primary and secondary schools (both 
maintained schools and academies) and the Cabinet Member for Education, 
Children & Families and council officers.  The Panel made a number of 

84



 
 
 

recommendations to the Cabinet which are expected to be reported to their        
18 June 2013 meeting.   
 

 
2012/13 Work Programmes 

 
For the 2012/13 municipal year, the Council has established two additional 
overview and scrutiny committees as follows: 
 

• Education Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

• Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairman have liaised with the council’s 
service areas and partners in developing outline work programmes for the 
2012/13 municipal year as follows.  All items contained within the draft work 
programmes will be subject to review and change as determined by the 
respective Chairman and Committees: 
 
Note: Draft work programmes for 2013/14 are currently in development and 
will be reported with final Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2012/13 
report to Council following discussion with committee chairmen. 
 
 

Business Management  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

Budget and Performance 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

Contract Monitoring  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Safeguarding Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Education Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

85



 
 
 

Appendix 1 – Call-ins 
 
Total Number of Call-ins by Year: 
 

Year Number 

2006-07 53 

2007-08 45 

2008-09 40 

2009-10 11 

2010-11 24 

2011-12 17 

2012-13 8 

 
Detail of Call ins: 
 

Date Item called in 

11 June 2012 Delegated Powers Report 1663 – Increase in Places Offered Under the Free Education for Less 
Advantaged Two Year Olds Scheme 

31 July 2012 Events in Parks Policy 

31 July 2012 Re-shaping Day Opportunities for Older People in Barnet: Results on Consultation and 
Recommendations for a Future Service 

31 July 2012 Consultation on Proposed Changes to the Funding Formula of Children’s Centres 

24 October 2012 Delegated Powers Report 1709 (Community Right to Challenge) 

86



 
 
 

Date Item called in 

24 October 2012 Infrastructure Managed Service Contract 

24 October 2012 Early Intervention and Prevention Strategic Outline Case 

6 December 2012 New Support & Customer Service Organisation: Recommendation for Preferred and Reserved 
Bidder and Full Business Case 

 
 

87



88

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Officer Contributors Anita Vukomanovic Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendices A,B, C, D – Advanced Notices of Executive Decisions 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

N/A 

Contact for further information:  

Anita Vukomanovic  Overview & Scrutiny Officer, 020 8359 7034  
anita.vukomanovic@barnet.gov.uk  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee 

Meeting Business Management  Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date 20 March 2013 

Subject Advanced Notification of Executive Decisions 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

AGENDA ITEM 12

89



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee comment on and consider the Advanced Notification of 

Executive Decisions when identifying areas of future scrutiny work. 
 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
 
 
3.      CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels and Task and Finish Groups must ensure 

that the work of Scrutiny is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 

3.2   The three key priorities set out in the 2013-16 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Supporting families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, learning and 
wellbeing,  

 

• Improving the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London Borough of 
Barnet as a place to live, work and study,  

 

• Promoting responsible growth, development and success across the borough.  
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a legislative duty to have ‘due regard’ 

 to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality and fostering good relations in 
 the contexts of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, religion 
 or belief and sexual orientation. 

 
5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as relating to 

matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the Overview and 
Scrutiny role in relation to: 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment and retention, 
personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff development, equalities and health 
and safety 

 
 

6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 
Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

90



 

 
 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 removes the requirement for local authorities to public a 
Forward Plan of Key Decisions.  This has been replaced with a requirement to publish an 
Advance Notification of Executive decisions which the Council has been compliant with 
since the regulations came into force on 10 September 2012. 

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are contained within Part 2, Article 

6 of the Council’s Constitution  
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution). 
 
 
9.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Under the current overview and scrutiny arrangements, the Business Management 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee will ensure that the work of scrutiny is reflective of 
Council priorities, as evidenced by the Corporate Plan and the programme being 
followed by the Executive.  

 
9.2  The Advanced Notification of Executive Decisions will be included on the agenda at each 

meeting of the Committee as a standing item.  
 
9.3 The Committee is encouraged to comment on the Notification.  
 
9.4 The Committee is asked to consider items contained within the Advanced Notification of 

Executive Decisions to assist in identifying areas of future scrutiny work, particularly 
focussing on areas where scrutiny can add value in the decision making process (pre-
decision scrutiny).   

 
9.5 When identifying items for pre-decision scrutiny, the Committee are requested to provide 

specific information on the rationale behind the pre-decision scrutiny request and the 
expected outcome to enable Cabinet Members and officers to prepare appropriately. 

 
9.6 Any further Advanced Notices which become available will be tabled at the meeting.   
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None 
 
 

91



92

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

London Borough of Barnet Decisions Taken Under Executive Functions – Notice of 
Proposed Urgent Item  
 
This notice gives details of an urgent key decision due to be taken under Executive functions. 
The Chairman of the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee has considered 
the decision and reason for urgency and has consented that the item should be approved by 
the Cabinet Member via a delegated powers report.  
 
 

Title Description of Proposed 
decision; and  

Reason for Urgency 

Cabinet 
Member 

Key 
Decision 

(Y/N). 

Subject 
to 
Exempt 
Report 

(Y/N). 

DELEGATED POWERS REPORT REF: 1912  
DECISION OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT 

Recommendation to Enter 
into a Framework Contract 
for the Delivery of Passenger 
Transport for Adults and SEN 
Children with Sixteen 
Providers  

Description 
Barnet participated in a joint 
procurement with London Borough 
of Harrow to procure a framework 
contract to deliver passenger 
transport services to Special 
Education Needs children and 
vulnerable adults. The Framework 
was tendered jointly with the 
London Borough of Harrow using 
an Open OJEU procurement 
process. Harrow have awarded the 
contract and are currently utilising 
it to deliver their passenger 
transport services.  
 
Reason for Urgency 
The existing contract expired on  
28 February 2013 and thus a new 
contract needs to be in place to 
ensure that there is no break in 
service. This is a high profile 
service used by vulnerable 
children and adults. Suppliers 
need to be provided with sufficient 
notice to ensure that they are able 
to provide the required service for 
business continuity. There is a 
significant risk to the Council if 
there was a break in the service 
where SEN children and 
vulnerable adults were not able to 
get to school and day centres 
respectively. 
 

Environment Yes Yes 

�
Notice published:  13 March 2013 

 

93



This page is intentionally left blank

94



London Borough of Barnet Decisions Taken Under Executive Functions – Advance 
Notice of Proposed Items for Decision and Parts of Meetings which will not be held in 
public session (‘subject to exempt report’). 
�

�

This notice gives details of proposed decisions due to be taken under Executive functions, 
together with information as to whether any proposed decisions are subject to an exempt 
report, consideration of which will not be in public session. The document below is also 
indicative of the decisions which at this stage are intended to be classified as ‘key’. For the 
purposes of complying with the The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 however, all prospective decisions listed 
below are to be regarded as potentially key or potentially subject to a separate exempt report 
(not held in public session). 
 
Please note: this plan lists prospective decisions. The final agenda for each meeting, which 
may not include all prospective decisions listed for that meeting on this document, will be 
published five clear working days prior to the meeting on the authority’s website: 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk 
 

Title Description of proposed 
decision 

Cabinet Member 
Key 
Decision 

(Y/N). 

Subject to 
Exempt 
Report 

(Y/N). 

CABINET, 18 APRIL 2013 
Hendon Town Hall, The Burroughs, NW4 4BG 

Barnet’s Local Plan –
Sustainable Design and 
Construction Supplementary 
Planning Document – Adoption 

The Sustainable Design and 
Construction Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) 
implements the policies 
contained in Barnet’s Local 
Plan Core Strategy and 
Development Management 
Policies documents.  
 
The Sustainable Design and 
Construction SPD sets out 
Barnet’s sustainability 
requirements for building 
design and performance at 
different scales of 
development. 

Planning and Regulatory 
Services 

Yes No 

Barnet’s Local Plan – 
Residential Design Guidance 
Supplementary Planning 
Document – Adoption 

The Residential Design 
Guidance Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) 
implements the policies 
contained in the Local Plan 
Core Strategy and 
Development Management 
Policies documents.  
 
This SPD sets out an 
approach to housing design 
that is sensitive to and reflects 
Barnet’s suburban character. 

Planning and Regulatory 
Services 

Yes No 

95



�

�

�� � � �

�

Barnet’s Local Plan – Planning 
Obligations Supplementary 
Planning Document - Adoption 

The Planning Obligations 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) implements 
the policies contained in the 
Local Plan Core Strategy and 
Development Management 
Policies documents.  
 
The Planning Obligations 
SPD has been revised to 
consolidate existing guidance 
documents, focus on when 
Planning Obligations will be 
required, and explain how 
they will be agreed in relation 
to Barnet’s Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The 
SPD sets the requirements for 
different scales of 
development as well as the 
procedures and processes for 
delivering the appropriate 
legal agreements and 
supplements policies in the 
Local Plan Core Strategy and 
Development Management 
Policies documents. 

Planning and Regulatory 
Services  

Yes No 

Social Care Funding Reform 
and the Draft Care & Support 
Bill: Implications for the London 
Borough of Barnet 

This report describes the 
main impact of the White 
Paper, Caring for our Future, 
and the draft Care & Support 
Bill, both published in July 
2012; and of the policy 
statement on Care and 
Support Funding Reform, 
presented to Parliament on 11 
February 2013. The report 
sets out the implications for 
Barnet based on empirical 
data and modelling where 
appropriate. 

Adults  No No 

Children and Young People 
Plan 2013-16 

The Barnet Children and 
Young People Plan (CYPP) 
sets out priorities and 
objectives for all organisations 
working with children and 
young people in Barnet for the 
next three years. 
This report outlines the 
development of the Barnet 
CYPP and asks members to 
approve the plan. 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Children and 
Families 

Yes No 

96



�

�

�� � � �

Reference from Business 
Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee: Review of 
Effectiveness of Task and 
Finish Groups 

This report submits a 
reference from the Business 
Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on the 
recommendations arising 
from a Review of the 
Effectiveness of Task and 
Finish Groups 

Leader of the Council No No 

CABINET RESOURCES COMMITTEE, 18 April 2013 
Hendon Town Hall, The Burroughs, NW4 4BG 

Award of Early Intervention and 
Prevention Contracts 

To award contracts for the 
provision of Early Intervention 
and Prevention services 

Education, Children and 
Families 
 

Yes Yes 

������� �����	� 
������� � 
�����

��������	�

To seek the Committee’s 
approval to enter into a lease 
for the Friern Barnet Library 

Resources and 
Performance 
 

Yes Yes 

Council Tax Overpayments To seek the Committee’s 
approval of Council Tax, 
Overpayments over £5,000 

Resources and 
Performance 
 

No No 

��������� ��� ����� ���������� �������

������������������

Approval of expansion of 
scheme from 350 to 700 
places by March 2014. 
 

Education, Children and 
Families  

Yes No 

�����������������	��	��	��� !�

���������	������"����������������

��#�������#�������������	$�

Proposals for investment in 
council housing over the 
coming 10 years to be 
delivered by Barnet Homes. 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing  
 

Yes No 

��������%��&��'�������	���	�

����������	������()	�������*�����

��������%��&��'����+���	�

����������������	�������	�

�����������������������,��#��

�

������"������'����������	���	�

����������	�������)	�����������

	�����������%��&��'���*�����

������"������'���	����	�����	����

&��	����-.���������	���	��

�����	������������������������

,��#������/���	����������������

���'�����

Education, Children and 
Families  

Yes No 

Interim IT Infrastructure Support 
Solution 

To report back on the 
emergency procurement of an 
supplier to support the 
council’s managed 
infrastructure  

Resources and 
Performance 

�

Yes 
(exempt 

from    
call-in) 

No 

Initiatives to Contribute to the 
Safer Communities Strategy 

This report outlines how the 
authority’s leadership role for 
community safety is 
developing and puts forward 
the cases for the 
implementation of a number 
of initiatives to support 
delivery of the Safer 
Communities Strategy 2011-
14.  

Resident Safety and 
Engagement 

Yes No 

Building of the Centre for 
Independent Living (CIL). 

Allocation of £1,524 million 
from the ASCH capital budget 
for the Building of the Centre 
for Independent Living (CIL). 

��#�	��

�

Yes Yes 

97



�

�

�� � � �

����	� ������ ����"�������

0�������	����

Recommendation that the 
Council begin preparations for 
procuring a development 
partner to deliver regeneration 
of the southern parts of Brent 
Cross Cricklewood 
regeneration area. 
Confirm continued 
appointment of external 
advisors for the project. 


���������	�����#�����

�

Yes No 

1��	�2������0�������	���� Recommendation to proceed 
with next phase of scheme 


���������	�����#�����

�

Yes No 

1��	������������	�������/��	� Authorisation for a number of 
procurements and also will be 
getting approval for additional 
funding required. 

(�'�������	� Yes No 

Mini tender for the operation of 

a dementia café and peer 

support�

Report back on this tender 
process as it involved a 
waiver of Contract Procedure 
Rules for reasons of urgency 

��#�	����������#��	����� No No 

 

Notice published: 21 March 2013 

�

98



 

 

London Borough of Barnet Decisions Taken Under Executive Functions – Advance 
Notice of Proposed Items for Decision and Parts of Meetings which will not be held in 
public session (‘subject to exempt report’). 
 
This notice gives details of a proposed decision due to be taken under Executive functions, 
together with information as to whether any proposed decisions are subject to an exempt 
report, consideration of which will not be in public session.  The document below is also 
indicative of the decisions which at this stage are intended to be classified as ‘key’.  For the 
purposes of complying with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 however, all prospective decisions listed 
below are to be regarded as potentially key or potentially subject to a separate exempt 
report (not held in public session). 
 
Please note: this plan lists prospective decisions. The final agenda for each meeting, which 
may not include all prospective decisions listed for that meeting on this document, will be 
published five clear working days prior to the meeting on the authority’s website: 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk 

 
 

Title Description of proposed 
decision 

Cabinet Member 
Key 
Decision 

(Y/N). 

Subject to 
Exempt 
Report 

(Y/N). 

 

Procurement of New 
Waste Containers  

Approval to appoint the 
highest scoring Bidder for the 
following: 
 
1) 240 litre wheeled bins for 

collection of dry 
recyclables; 

2) Internal (7 litre) and 
external (23 litre) 
containers for the 
collection of food waste; 

3) Biodegradable liners for 
internal food waste 
containers; 

4) Waste bags and sacks; 
and 

5) Distribution service for all 
of the above 

 

Cabinet Member for 
Environment 

Yes Yes 

�

���������	
��

 

99



This page is intentionally left blank

100



 

 

London Borough of Barnet Decisions Taken Under Executive Functions – Advance 
Notice of Proposed Items for Decision and Parts of Meetings which will not be held in 
public session (‘subject to exempt report’). 
 
This notice gives details of a proposed decision due to be taken under Executive functions, 
together with information as to whether any proposed decisions are subject to an exempt 
report, consideration of which will not be in public session.  The document below is also 
indicative of the decisions which at this stage are intended to be classified as ‘key’.  For the 
purposes of complying with the The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 however, all prospective decisions listed 
below are to be regarded as potentially key or potentially subject to a separate exempt report 
(not held in public session). 
 
Please note: this plan lists prospective decisions. The final agenda for each meeting, which 
may not include all prospective decisions listed for that meeting on this document, will be 
published five clear working days prior to the meeting on the authority’s website: 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk 
 
 

Title Description of proposed 
decision 

Cabinet Member 
Key 
Decision 

(Y/N). 

Subject to 
Exempt 
Report 

(Y/N). 

 

Procurement of 
Replacement Waste and 
Recycling Collection 
Vehicles 

Approval to lease and/or 
capital purchase 
replacement vehicles for 
the collection of refuse, 
recycling and food waste 

Cabinet Member for 
Environment 

Yes Yes 

�

5 April 2013 
 

101



This page is intentionally left blank

102



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Officer Contributors Anita Vukomanovic Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix 1 – Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 2012/13 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

N/A 

Contact for further information: Anita Vukomanovic, Overview & Scrutiny Officer                      
020 8359 2014, anita.vukomanovic@barnet.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Business Management Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date 2 May 2013 

Subject Business Management Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee Forward Work Programme 2012/13 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report outlines the Committee’s draft work programme for 
2012/13 

AGENDA ITEM 13

103



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 2012/13 

work programme of the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
as set out in the Appendix. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
 
3.      CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels and Task and Finish Groups must ensure 

that the work of Scrutiny is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 

3.2   The three key priorities set out in the 2013-16 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Supporting families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, learning and 
wellbeing,  

 

• Improving the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London Borough of 
Barnet as a place to live, work and study,  

 

• Promoting responsible growth, development and success across the borough.  
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as relating to 

matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the Overview and 
Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment and 
retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff development, equalities 
and health and safety. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 

104



 

 
 
 
 
8 CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, Article 6 

of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution). 
 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme 

2012/13 indicates: 

a) items of business carried forward from the Business Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee work programme for the 2011/12 municipal year; and  

b) items requested by the Committee in the 2012/13 municipal year.   
 

c) items to be carried forward to the 2013/14 municipal year. 
 
9.2 The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool, which will 

be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the inclusion of areas which 
may arise through the course of the year.  

 
9.3 The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of 

work within the programme.  
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

105



106

This page is intentionally left blank



 

       
 

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t 
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
 

 

 

  
 

C
o

n
ta

c
t:
 A

n
it
a

 V
u

k
o
m

a
n

o
v
ic

, 
0

2
0

8
 3

5
9

 7
0

3
4

, 
a

n
it
a

.v
u

k
o
m

a
n

o
v
ic

@
b
a

rn
e

t.
g
o

v
.u

k
   

 107



 

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

6
 

 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

2
4
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

S
to

p
 t
h

e
 O

n
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 P

e
ti
ti
o

n
 

 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 p
e
ti
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 

in
 e

x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
2

,0
0

0
 s

ig
n
a

tu
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

ri
g
g
e

rs
 

a
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

c
a

ll 
a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
a

t 
a

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

  
  

C
a

b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

T
a

s
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

is
h

 G
ro

u
p
s
 /

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
ls

 -
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
in

g
 

 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e

 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d
e

 b
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

is
h

 
G

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
ls

 (
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
o

n
ly

) 
a

t 
s
ix

-m
o

n
th

ly
 i
n

te
rv

a
ls

. 
 

 

N
/A

 
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

 

2
0
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 C

h
a

rg
e

s
 P

e
ti
ti
o

n
 

U
p

d
a

te
 

 

In
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
, 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

a
 p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d

 b
e
e

n
 s

ig
n

e
d

 b
y
 i
n

 
e

x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
2

,0
0
0

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 

c
h

a
rg

e
s
. 

 T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
 

u
p

d
a

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

a
t 

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
. 

  
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

 

In
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
n

d
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n
 

 

108



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 D
is

o
rd

e
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 –

 
U

p
d

a
te

 o
n
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 –

 2
0
1

4
/1

5
 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s
 w

it
h

in
 i
ts

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
“>

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 a

ll 
m

a
tt
e

rs
, 

n
o

t 
th

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

, 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 c

ri
m

e
, 

d
is

o
rd

e
r,

 a
n

ti
-

s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

o
lic

e
 

a
n

d
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 A
c
t 

2
0

0
6

.”
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 t
h
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a

rd
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 2

0
1
1

/1
2
 t

o
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 
R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
E

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

s
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

U
p

d
a

te
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
n

 u
p
d

a
te

 o
n

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 S

c
h
e

m
e

  

C
a

b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
  

In
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
n

d
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n
 

S
to

p
 T

h
e

 O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 P

e
ti
ti
o

n
 –

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

In
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2

, 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

a
 p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

d
 2

,9
7
3

 
s
ig

n
a

tu
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
lle

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 O

n
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

to
p
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 f
o

r 
a

 
re

fe
re

n
d

u
m

 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
. 
 I

n
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
, 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

a
lle

d
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 g

iv
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

ra
is

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
ti
ti
o

n
. 
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 m

a
d
e

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u
e

s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

c
a

lle
d

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
re

fe
r 

th
e

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r.
  
T

h
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
a

tt
e

n
d
e

d
 t
h

e
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 r

a
is

e
d

. 
  

C
a

b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

109



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

1
3
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 (
S
p
e
c
ia
l 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
) 

C
a

ll-
in

s
 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

 c
a

ll-
in

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 o
n

 6
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
 i
n

 
re

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 N

e
w

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
. 

  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

W
e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 -

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 C

ri
s
is

 
F

u
n

d
 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

o
o

k
 p

re
-d

e
c
is

io
n

 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
re

p
o

rt
s
 o

n
 W

e
lf
a

re
 

R
e

fo
rm

 (
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

c
h
e

m
e

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 C
ri
s
is

 F
u

n
d

) 

D
e

p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

/ 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r,
 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 &

 B
e

n
e
fi
ts

 

7
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 (
R
e
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
) 

T
a

s
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

is
h

 G
ro

u
p
s
 /

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
ls

 -
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
in

g
 

 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
n
 u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d
e

 b
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

is
h

 
G

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
ls

 (
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
o

n
ly

) 
a

t 
s
ix

-m
o

n
th

ly
 i
n

te
rv

a
ls

. 
 

 

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

T
a

s
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

is
h

 G
ro

u
p
 /

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
U

p
d

a
te

s
  

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
n
 u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

fo
u

r 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 
T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u

p
s
 /

 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n
e

ls
. 

 

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

C
h

ip
p

in
g
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
n

d
 E

d
g
w

a
re

 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 
p

re
-d

e
c
is

io
n

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
T

o
w

n
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 f
o

r 
E

d
g
w

a
re

 a
n

d
 C

h
ip

p
in

g
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

110



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
T

a
s
k
 a

n
d

 
F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u

p
s
 

 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
T

a
s
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

is
h

 G
ro

u
p

s
. 

  

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
o

rk
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

N
/A

 
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

 

2
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

T
a

s
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

is
h

 G
ro

u
p
s
 /

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
ls

 -
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
in

g
 

 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d
e

 b
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

is
h

 
G

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
ls

 (
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
o

n
ly

) 
a

t 
s
ix

-m
o

n
th

ly
 i
n

te
rv

a
ls

. 
 

 T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

to
 r

e
-

c
o

n
v
e

n
e

 t
h

e
 S

u
p
p

ly
 o

f 
S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 u
p

d
a

te
. 

  

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
/C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
c
h
e

m
e
 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
n
 

u
p

d
a

te
 o

n
 t
h

e
 B

re
n

t 
C

ro
s
s
/C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 S
c
h
e

m
e
 

 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

la
c
e
  

B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
a

n
d

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 t
h

is
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
d
u

e
 t
o

 t
im

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
.  

  

H
o

u
s
in

g
  

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

la
c
e
 

111



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 A

n
n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 A

n
n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
to

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
C

o
u
n

c
il.

 

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
  

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
o

rk
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

N
/A

 
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

 

3
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
o

rk
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

N
/A

 
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

 

112


	Agenda
	8 Brent Cross / Cricklewood Regeneration Scheme
	ApprovedFinalDraftCRCREPORT090413

	9 Management Agreement with The Barnet Group for the Management of Council's Housing Stock and Provision of the Housing Service
	10 Task and Finish Group / Overview and Scrutiny Panel Updates
	Appendix A - Domestic Violence TFG April
	Appendix B - Contract Monitoring and Community Benefit Task and Finish Group
	Appendix C - Supply of Secondary School Places Recommendation Tracking Report Update
	Appendix D - Early Intervention & Prevention (Children™s Services) Task & Finish Group

	11 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report
	OSC Annual Report 2012-13

	12 Advanced Notice of Executive Decisions
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	13 Work Programme
	Appendix_BMOSC_2.5.13_Forward Work Programme


